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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES For the Years Ended
December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001
Operating Performance
Revenues $ 636,690 § 586,543
Net Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle & Capital Gains (Losses) $ 24,789 $ 25907
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (1,463) —
Net Capital Gains (Losses) (4,485) 1,315
Net Income $ 18,841 $ 27222
Per Share Data
Basic Earnings (Losses) Per Common Share;
Net income Before Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle & Capital Gains (Losses) $ 1.43 $ 1.50
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (0.08) —
Net Capital Gains (Losses) (0.26) 0.08
Total $ 1.09 $ 1.58
Average Shares Qutstanding for EPS—Basic 17,323 17,282
Diluted Earnings (Losses) Per Common Share:
Net Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle & Capital Gains (Losses) $ 1.39 $ 1.44
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (0.08) —
Net Capital Gains (Losses) (0.25) 0.07
Total $ 1.06 $ 1.51
Average Shares Outstanding for EPS—Diluted 417,789 17,991
Cash Dividends $ A75 g 160
Book Value $ 17.59 3 16.53
Financial Position
Total Assets $1,050,674 $1,053,942
Shareholders’ Equity $ 308,908 $ 291,876
Performance Ratio
Combined Ratio (American Modern's Property and Casualty Companies) 100.6% 99.8%
Net Income and Net Income
Before Capital Gains (Losses)
and Change in Accounting Book Vzlue Per Share
Revenues Grow 8.5% in 2002 Principle Per Share Up 6.4% to $17.59
{dollars in millions)
O Net Income
$700 $2.00 3 Net Income Before Capital Gains $20.00
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Adijusted o reflect 2-for-1 stock Adjusted to reflect 2-for-1 stock
Midland’s revenues con_?inued to grow, as split in July 2002. salitin July 2002,
g,ﬁ:}g;ﬁ?m l?;::v;h“;r;rﬁ;edzwﬁ :‘lny' s The rate increases and underwriting Over the past 10 years, book value has
manufactured housing premiums due to actions begun in 2002 are expected io put grown at @ compounded annual rate of
challenges in that marketplace performance back on track with the 10.9 percent.
: company’s historic level of performance.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

strategically setting a course, implementing it,
and making adjustments along the way to stay on
track. It often is a matter of courage, a willingness
to see beyond what is to determine what will be.

in 2002, we were reminded in many ways that

our actions today shape the future for our company.
We needed to balance "staying the course" with
responding appropriately to market challenges and
opportunities. We assumed the mantle of market
leadership in various areas and innovated in the
face of an evolving business environment. We
maintained our long-term focus in the face of
short-term challenges.

From left, John W. Hayden, President and Chief
Executive Officer and Joseph P. Hayden 111, Chaivman
and Chief Operating Officer

We met these challenges with creativity, courage
and vision, embracing the important decisions that
needed to be made while remaining true to our
values. As a result, we see a bright future for
our company.

BALANCE "STAYING THE COURSE"
WITH RESPONSIVENESS
As a leader in the specialty insurance arena, we

recognized a number of years ago that we needed
to expand our core group of products to more thor-

oughly serve the needs of our business partners,
especially in our Agency channel of distribution.

That strategic direction produced greater balance
in premiums written among our various product
lines in 2002, with manufactured housing premium
representing less than 50 percent of total premiums,
compared with 62 percent just three years before.
The fact that we were able to achieve property and
casualty premium growth of 5.9 percent at a time
when our manufactured housing premium dropped
9.6 percent bears testament to the success of prod-
uct diversification as a growth strategy. All other
specialty lines -- such as motorcycle, site-built
dwelling, mortgage fire, recreational vehicle, credit
life and collector automobile products -- collectively
grew 45.8 percent to $237.8 million in 2002. While
we remain fully committed to the long-term poten-
tial of the manufactured housing market, these new
product lines provide the increased flexibility and
agility we need to create and capture growth
opportunities in a changing environment.

During 2002, American Modern's largest market
- manufactured housing - saw a continued decline
in new home shipments to 168,000 units, a
decrease of 13.0 percent from the 193,000 units
shipped in 2001, a trend that is attributable to our
nation's broad-based economic problems and
several factors unique to the manufactured housing
marketplace. But, we remain committed to the
market, and are confident both in its recovery and
in our ability to serve it extraordinarily well.
Because, even thaugh 2002 shipments lagged,
manufactured housing continues to contribute to
the American dream of home ownership.

In the meantime, we have focused our expertise
on products and services tailored to support our
Agency, Finance and Point-of-Sale partners. In
particular, we continue to strengthen relationships
with key Agency business partners who help
position us to penetrate the increasing percentage
of manufactured homes that are financed through
traditional lenders and insured through the Agency
channel. This effort, when coupled with American
Modern's growth in other specialty products, led to
a 36.8 percent increase in net written premium in
the Agency channel of distribution, making an
important contribution to the company’s growth
objectives in 2002.
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Our enviable history of record-breaking results
often made it difficult in recent years to gain
approval from state departments of insurance for
rate increases of the magnitude deemed
appropriate. Our ability to obtain rate increases
improved in 2002, enabling American Modern to
successfully file for manufactured housing rate
increases averaging approximately 10 percent,
which will yield increases in earned premium over
the next 12 to 24 months. With clear justification
and a regulatory environment more receptive to
rate adequacy, we are pursuing additional increases
across all lines of business.

Rate increases in our motorcycle line in early
2003 will be our first meaningful increases in the
market in two years due to the timing of our entry
into that market. When we acquired GuideOne's
motorsports book of business in September 2000,
we focused initial efforts on system development
and customer retention. Now, with the conversion
nearly complete, we will be filing for rate increases
averaging approximately 20 percent nationwide, as

well as profit-enhancing product modifications
throughout our motorcycle programs.

INNOVATE IN THE FACE OF AN
EVOLVING BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
We continued in 2002 to meticulously evaluate
new business opportunities that would enhance our
position within chosen specialty markets. One of
the most notable was a new partnership forged
with Bell & Clements, a London-based excess and
surplus lines broker, that offered us an opportunity
to better serve many of our General Agency part-
ners in a relationship that provided a favorable
reward-to-risk ratio. We anticipate that the largest
portion of this premium will come from commercial
physical damage lines. We have very high expecta-
tions for this partnership in 2003 and beyond.

MAINTAIN LONG-TERM FOCUS IN THE
FACE OF SHORT-TERM CHALLENGES

We started 2002 with two quarters of record
profits, but the second half of 2002 presented a
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significant challenge. Abnormally high fire losses and
significant storm losses from Hurricane Lili in early
October, along with summer’s seasonal upswing in
losses in the motorcycle and watercraft areas, put
added pressure on our profitability. Fortunately, the
manufactured housing fire loss ratio in the fourth
quarter returned to the improving trend line we had
seen in the first half of the year. For the full year,
weather-related catastrophe losses were approximately
$11.5 million (pre-tax) more than in 2001. American
Modern’s property and casualty lines in 2002 had a
combined ratio (expenses and losses calculated as a
percentage of premiums earned) of 100.6 percent.
While our combined ratio was substantially better
than the industry's estimated 106.3 ratio, we are not
satisfied with this result.

in total, net income (before
capital gains (losses) and
change in accounting princi-

ple) was $1.39 per share
(diluted) including $1.19 per

share related to catastrophe
losses compared with $1.44
(diluted) per share in 2001,

including 76 cents per share
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At a record $635.0 million, direct and
assumed written premiums in 2002 under-
scored the efforts the company is making fo
diversify its product line.

related to catastrophes.

Net income for 2002 was
$1.06 per share, including 25
cents per share of capital loss-
es and 8 cents per share of
losses related to the adoption of SFAS No. 142
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." 1n 2001,
net income was $1.51 per share, including 7 cents per
share of capital gains.

We believe our actions to address rates and focus
on specialty lines of business where we can be a lead-
er will help us return the combined ratio to the range
of 96 to 98 percent in 2003 and beyond, trending
back toward our long-term target of 95.5 percent.

We are pleased to report that Midland’s invest-
ment portfolio continued to grow, reaching $739.8
million at year-end 2002, up from $704.0 at the end
of 2001. From the outset of 2002, the investment
portfolio weathered volatility in the market, with
pre-tax net unrealized gains increasing by $5.5 mil-
lion. The equity portfolio had a net decrease of $10.1
million, and the fixed income portfolio had a net

increase of $15.6 million in 2002. These results
affirm our philosophy of taking a balanced
approach to managing the portfolio.

INDICATED ANNUAL DIVIDEND
INCREASE REFLECTS OPTIMISTIC
QUTLOOK

Midland's shareholders’ equity closed the year at a
record $308.9 million, or $17.59 per share, up from
$291.9 million, or $16.53 per share, at year-end
2001...a 6.4 percent increase per share. It is worth
noting that the company's book value has grown at
a compounded annual rate in excess of 10 percent
over the last twenty years. During that same period,
the compounded annual total return of 17.5
percent for Midland's stock outperformed the 12.7
percent return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 and the
7.6 percent of the Russell 2000. Reflecting its confi-
dence in the future, Midiand's Board of Directors
recently increased the company’s indicated annual
dividend for the 17th consecutive year.

The consistency of and confidence in our long-
term financial strength was reinforced during the
year with a reaffirmation of American Modern's A+
(Superior) rating and upgrade of American
Modern's life subsidiaries to A- (Excellent) by A.M.
Best. And, for the fourth consecutive year, the
Ward Financial Group recognized American Modern
as one of the Top 50 property and casualty insurers.

SHAPING TOMORROW TODAY

Alfin all, 2002 was a year of mixed blessings. We
faced its challenges by maintaining our focus on the
core operating principles that have made us an
acknowledged leader in specialty property and
casualty personal lines insurance. These principles
define our company, providing the framework
under which we make decisions about the form and
function of our products and services, about the
markets we choose to serve, about the distribution
channels we develop and about the way we do
business. Applying these principles today sets the
stage for tomorrow's successes.

e Focus on Specialized Products. American
Modern targets small, defensible market niches
where our expertise in the evaluation, pricing and
servicing of specialized risks can provide a competi-
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tive advantage. Our focus is on insurance products
that are characterized by lower per-claim costs but
generally higher claim frequency than products with
significant liability exposures.

* Multiple Distribution Channels. To com-
plement our specialty focus, we employ several dis-
tinct channels of distribution. This enables American
Modern to design products targeted to selected risk
classes, more effectively diversifying exposure to
risk. Two key components of American Modern’s
distribution strategy include a continued focus on
the Agency channel and positioning products as
part of the original purchase or financing transac-
tion with lenders, manufacturers and retailers.

* Leverage Multiple Company Structure
across Distribution Channels. American
Modern owns six property and casualty companies,
two life companies, three agencies and three service
companies. We leverage this multiple company
structure across our distribution channels to garner
important flexibility in our ability to tailor product
offerings to policyholders or business partners.

¢ Consistent Underwriting Profit. American
Modern maintains a highly disciplined approach to
underwriting. Our commitment to specialty niches
has enabled us to develop analytical tools, pricing
models and products designed for profitability. This
underwriting expertise has contributed to the 96.8
percent average statutory combined ratio we have
achieved over the past 10 years, which compares to
an estimated industry average of 107.5 percent
over the same period.

o Expert Claims Alanagement. American
Modern has invested substantial resources in our
claims management infrastructure and in the
training and development of staff adjusters to pro-
vide policyholders with timely and accurate claims
processing. We employ more than 250 full-time
associates in our claims department, including more
than 145 field claims adjusters. The use of in-house
claims staff results in greater customer satisfaction
and improved underwriting results; our claims staff
knows our products, and can generally settle claims
quickly. In 2002, 87.2 percent of property claims
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Combined Ratio Consistently
Qutperforms Industry

were settled within 30 days of notification, with
many paid upon the initial review. This disciplined
approach to the claims process has been a key
contributor to the success of recent product
diversification efforts.

¢ Reduce Earnings Voiatility via Risk
Management. American Modern has long been
an industry leader in the use of modeling software
to monitor weather-related catastrophe risk expo-
sure. These techniques allow us to manage
geographic concentration within high-risk areas,
such as coastal and adjacent counties. As an exam-
ple, although Florida has the largest number of
manufactured homes in the United States, American
Modern has chosen to limit our exposure in that
state, which represented less than 4 percent of gross
written premium in 2002. In
addition, reinsurance pro-
grams help reduce exposure

on large individual risks.

* Strategically Deploy
Techrology. Our invest-
ment in information tech-
nology is part of a carefully
planned strategy to ensure
that American Modern’s
company-wide infrastruc-
ture is among the most

120%
[0 American Modern
I Industry
110% —
100%
20%
28 o9 00 01 02

American Modern’s property and casualty

advanced in the specialty
insurance industry. A rela-

stafutory combined ratio has averaged
96.8 percent over the last 10 years, well
below the indusiry average of 107.5

tively low average premium

percent,

per policy requires us to effi-
ciently handle large volumes
of transactions. Through modernLINK™, our Web-
enablement initiative, American Modern seeks to
even more efficiently meet the needs of business
partners and policyholders by providing self-service
opportunities over the internet. In 2002, we deliv-
ered important new functionality through the
modernLINK initiative, including the ability for pro-
ducers to rate, quote and submit manufactured
home business via the internet. By leveraging tech-
nological advances, we will begin to benefit in 2003
from cost management and growth strategies that
might be otherwise unattainable.

These principles define us as well as inspire us,
guiding a future of growth that fits within these

parameters. As discussed more fully on the following
pages, we grow strategically, through organic
expansion and policyholder retention, through key
alliances and acquisitions, and through various
fee-income opportunities. All the while, we remain
committed to our core principles and to our mission.

REMAIN TRUE TO CORPORATE
VALUES

While the values of several generations of Midland
leadership have served us well in today’s regulatory
environment, those values were born of an uncom-
promising belief in the dignity of fair play and
respect for others. Integrity. Win/Win Solutions.
Teamwork. Personal Growth. Humility. Creativity.
Propriety. Sharing and Caring. And, Strong Work
Ethic. These nine simple values have defined us for
more than six decades. As others are legislated
toward the standards that we set for ourselves
almost 65 years ago, Midland will hold itself to an
even higher standard...a standard that will continue
to provide us with a sustainable competitive
advantage for years to come.

THE VisiON REMAINS CLEAR

The challenges may have been many in 2002. But
our corporate mission, vision, values and operating
strategies kept us clearly on course and put us in
position for a rewarding future. To that end, in July
our Board approved a two-for-one stock split, which
increased the total number of shares outstanding to
17.6 million at December 31, 2002.

During the year, we also evaluated, filed and
eventually withdrew plans for a secondary offering
of our common stock. While conditions in early
2002 were advantageous for property and casualty
insurance companies and small- to mid-capitaliza-
tion value stocks, making it logical for Midland to
consider raising capital through the sale of stock,
subsequent events in the financial markets made
the decision to withdraw the registration statement
appropriate.

While a stock offering would have enhanced our
already strong financial position and further
increased the liquidity of our stock, the timing
simply was not right. With or without an offering,
we believe Midland and our insurance subsidiary,
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American Modern Insurance Group, are financially
strong and well positioned to continue to support
our business model.

Thanks to the coordinated and committed effort
of more than a thousand associates who live our
values daily, our 2003 business plan is one of the
most comprehensive and integrated plans we have
ever developed. We have aligned our corporate
priorities with our resources and are fully prepared
to continue the successes of our past. We have
extended the line of sight of our associates so that

e
Joseph P. Hayden ill

Chairman and
Chief Operating Officer

SHAPING TOMORRCOW WITH

VISION

each has a better understanding of where we're
going as an organization and what we need to do
to get there. In doing so, we have made leadership
more than just a management responsibility.

Considerable challenges remain. Yet, we remain
resolutely optimistic about our ability to succeed, as
we close the book on 2002 and move with eager
anticipation toward our future. We are confident
that the creativity, courage and vision of our actions
in the past year have shaped an enviable tomorrow
for your company.

I

John W. Hayden
President and
Chief Executive Officer

February 6, 2003
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significant opportunitics for American
Modern to leverage our product expertise
geographic breadth to expand premium
volume in core product lines. These

opportunities include:

* Rate Increases. During the past 12 months
American Modern filed rate increases tor our

manufactured housing

ORGANIC
GROWTH

The current market environment provides * Enhanced Market Share: Our decp relation-

ships with agents, vertically integrated manufactur-
and crs, dealers and other business partners create
pathways to enhance our market share and intro-
duce new specialty insurance lines. For example,
over the past 18 months, American Modern’s
Agency Conversion Department has converted
, more than $30 million in annualized premium.
This premium — from agencies that previously gen-

erated a high volume of

products in most states. DistributionfiViixg BroductiiVi business for competitors —
{Perecrioge off Direei ond (fParcerege of Tere! Dirag one! ] )
The majority of these Aspumed Wrttion Premiumng) Aeoumeg Witten Pramivrsl vielded approximately

increases, which have
totaled approximately 10
percent, have been
approved and will be
reflected in ncreased
carned premium over the
next 12 to 24 months.
Additional rate increases A

are planned for all product

80,000 new pohicyholders
tor American Modern. Our
agreement with Fifth Third
Bancorp is another example.
In June 2002, American
Modern announced an
agreement to track insurance

coverage via Ameritrac on

Morguge Fre

items such as automobiles,

JAmericafModetnalhas)

lines in 2003. travel trailers and boats for
w&% which Fifth Third is the
faccessiioliskspecialtys hand . L
picdict primary lender.
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Customer retention is the lifeblood of an insur-
ance company. For that reason, American
Modern has always placed high priority on deliv-
ering the right combination of product, price,
service and convenience to our customers.
However, challenges within our core manufac-
tured housing markets in recent years have
served to underscore even turther the impor-
tance of customer rctention. In late 2002, that
philosophy took clearer shape in the form of a
comprchensive, three-year company-wide
initiative that will focus on a wide variety of cus-
tomer contact enhancements designed to help
maximize customer lovalty.

For example, American Modern continues to
improve our targeted communications to exist-
ing policyholders, expand the use of electronic
payment systems for agent convenience in serv-
ing customer needs and provide Web-based
capabilities that enable our agents and policy-
holders to conveniently access information about
their insurance policies and

Five Years billing status.

NG

Additional emphasis on

PO
| the quality and clarity of
BB - quatity ]
; policvholder communica-
LA o .
tions and on expanding a
M= = = - policyholder advocacy
= = = = - culture within our cus-
tomer scrvice and claims

& s & B d
[G83SRN00NN0102]

Ponerfeen Mecker

Wm 00
drivenibylgrovihlinkthel

motoroyclcyiinefol

areas is expected to further
enhance customer reten-

tion in the vears ahead.

———

ALLIANCES

American Modcern proactively establishes refa-
tionships with standard multi-line insurance
companics where our specialty product expertise
can assist such standard carriers in mecting the
needs of their policyholders. In 2002, we took
important steps to strengthen our relationships
with key Strategic Alliance partners. By clarity-
ing servicing roles, better defining underwriting
guidelines and enhancing the on-line access of
our partners to information about their cus-
tomers, we rcalized improvement in performance
within this business segment. Our focus on
maximizing relationships with existing accounts
effectively helped shaped tomorrow today by
building a better, more reliable template for
future growth.

Amica Mutual, for example, is one of our
Strategic Alhance partners, offering manufac-
tured housing and watercraft insurance through
American Modern. Amica is the nation's oldest
mutual insurer of automobiles. The company is a
national wnter of automobile, homeowner,
marine, and personal umbrella liability coverage.
Amica is consistently rated #1 in customer satls-
faction tor both auto and homeowner coverage
by a leading consumer magazine.

As a result of our focus on enhancing the
profitability of existing relationships in 2002,
production within our Strategic Alliance
accounts rcached $21.3 million, a growth rate of
18.3 percent. We will continue to seek strategic
alliances where we can leverage our specialty

expertise in product, systems and claims.
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We regularly evaluate acquisition opportunities

of companics and sclected books of business.

We pursue acquisitions that will allow us to
leverage our core competencics, enhance our
leadership position, expand our specialty product
offerings and broaden our distribution channels.

Amcrican Modern’s disciplined approach to
cvaluating acquisition opportunitics has resulted
in successful acquisitior. activity. For example, in
August 2000, American Modern acquired the
operations and renewal rights of all of the
motorcycle, watercraft and snowmobile insur-
ance underwritten by GuideOne Specialty
Mutual Insurance Company. American Modern’s
motorsports book of business (motorcycle and
watercraft) has grown to more than 12.5 percent
of gross written premium volume in 2002 from
less than four percent in 1999.

Since the timing of acquisitions cannot be
predicted, the contribution of acquisitions
moving forward is difficult to quantify. These
opportunities, however, offer potential that can

contribute to accelerated premium growth and
higher profitability.

QPP QRTUNZTEES

'Anothcr <C mponcnt of our growth stratcg,xcs

to business:partners and pursue internal

- evidence of insurance.

FEE INCOME

involves iookmg for opportunities to gcm,ratc S

‘non-risk based fee income as we provide semces |

gcncratcd fu: income and also produccd approx st
imately $68 million of insurance premium in
2002. Ameritrac tracks loan portfolios for

financial institutions and places i insurance on-

loans where the borrower does not provxde

Ameritrac continues to diversify its services,
reaching agrecments with three new accounts in
2002 to provide claim disbursement services.
Relationships with new accounts; the addition of o
services within current accounts, such as htth ‘
Third Bank and the geographic expansion of
service to Provident Bank's regional offices are
clear indicators of the potential for profitable
growth in 2003 and beyond.




AMERICAN MODERN INSU

RANCE (GROUP

INVESTMENT PORTFCLIO

Market Values Pre-tax Investment Income
{dollars in millions) {dollars in millions)
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In 2002, pre-fax invesiment income rose 5.0 percent as cash flow from operations helped to offset the low interest rate environment.

ANNUALIZED TOTAL RETURN
(Total Return is the rate of return on a portfolio that takes into consideration both interest income
and dividends plus the change in the market value.)

Periods Ending December 31, 2002

1 Year 3 Years 5 Years
EQUITIES:
American Modern-Composite -8.3% -7.0% 2.0%
American Modern-Excluding Investment
In US Bancorp- -18.8% -14.9% -0.4%
American Modern-US Bancorp only 4.4% 3.5% 4.8%
S&P 500 -22.1% -14.6% -0.6%
FIXED INCOME TOTAL RETURN:
AMIG After Tax 8.2% 7.8% 5.3%
After Tax Lehman Brothers Intermediate
Government/Credit Index 7.7% 73% 52%
FIXED INCOME PRE-TAX EQUIVALENT YIELD
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002 62%
AVERAGE MATURITY AS OF
DECEMBER 31, 2002 5.1 years
DURATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002 3.9 years
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M /G TRANSPORT SERVICES, INC.

SHAPING
TOMORROW

A Unigue Investment in a
Niche River Transportation Business.

/G Transport and its sales and

marketing arm, MGT Services Inc.,

continue to fill a niche in the barge
transportation marketplace and today account for
4 percent of Midland's total revenues.

Collectively known as M /G, this barge

affreightment subsidiary of Midland operates
primarily in Louisiana from
Baton Rouge to New Orleans.
In 2002 M/G's pre-tax earn-
ings declined to $0.5 million
from $1.7 million in 2001. The
decrease was primarily due to a
disruption in traffic patterns for petroleum coke.
M/G remains committed to the transportation of
dry bulk commodities, as evidenced in its 30 new
open hopper barges scheduled for delivery during
the second quarter of 2003. While historical traf-
fic patterns for petroleum coke returned in early
2003, downward pressure on rates continues to

challenge the industry.

Efficiency Continues to Define M/G
M /G provides superior service to large industrial
clients, transporting dry cargoes such as petroleum
coke, barite, sugar, iron ore, grain, steel pipe and
other dry bulk commodities. The operations are
concentrated on the Lower Mississippi River and
westbound on the Gulf Intercoastal Waterway.

As of December 31, 2002,
M /G serves its customers with a
fleet of 194 jumbo hopper barges,
owned or leased by the company.
M/G supplements its fleet by
chartering equipment or renting
space from other operators as necessary to meet
customer needs, thus providing operating flexibility.

M /G has been a sound investment for
Midland, in particular because of its efficient opera-
tions. M/G generated $23.3 million in revenue in
2002, with an experienced staff of 15 employees.
M /G remains attuned to market conditions and
will respond with strategies designed to best take

advantage of those conditions.
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Sx YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY IDATA

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

For the Years Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Income Statement Data
Revenues:
Insurance:
Premiums earned $ 577,668 $ 508,233 $456,120 5$400,991 $375,478 $311,159
Net investment income 35,455 33,802 30,774 25,292 23,908 21,332
Net realized investment gains (losses)(@) (6,200) 2,023 4,646 3,486 6.354 4,170
Other insurance income 6,674 7.175 8,784 6,793 2,508 1,657
Transportation 23,285 34,826 33,119 31,327 33,059 34,933
Other 508 484 979 1,237 1,055 617
Total 636,690 586,543 534,422 469,126 442 362 373,768
Costs and Expenses:
Insurance:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 341,015 292,188 240,680 204,365 210,015 171,163
Commissions and other policy acquisition costs 169,477 145,777 137,053 114,212 103,169 79,518
Operating and administrative expenses 73,459 73,322 70,755 66,541 54,309 49,118
Transportation operating expenses 22,641 32.898 28,828 29,255 28,287 30,079
Interest expense 3,84° 4,368 4,132 4,067 4,991 4,983
Other operating and administrative expenses 508 1,286 2,305 6,973 4,064 4,204
Total 610,249 549,839 483,753 425,413 404,835 339,065
Income Before Federal Income Tax, Cumulative
Effect of Change in Accounting Principle and
Loss from Discontinued Operations 25,741 36,704 50,669 43,713 37,527 34,703
Provision for Federal Income Tax 5,437 9,482 15,206 12,534 10,595 10,336
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle and Loss from
Discontinued Operations 20,304 27,222 35,463 31,179 26,932 24,367
Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle—Net(d) (1,463) — — — — —
Loss from Discontinued Operations(® —_ — -_ —_ — (6,817)
Net Income $ 18841 $ 27222 §$ 35463 $ 31179 § 26932 $ 17,550
Basic Earnings (Losses) Per Share
of Common Stock(c):
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle and Loss
from Discontinued Operations $ 1147 § 158 § 19 $ 171 $§ 149 § 136
Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle(® (0.08) — — — — —
Loss from Discontinued Operations® — — — — — (0.38)
Total $ 109 § 158 § 196 § 1.71 % 149 § 0.98
Diluted Earnings (Losses) Per Share
of Common Stock(©:
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle and Loss
from Discontinued Operations $ 114§ 151 § 189 $ 165 $§ 143 § 132
Cumulative Effect of Change
in Accounting Principle(d (0.08) — — — — —
Loss from Discontinued Operations(®) — — — — — (0.38;
Total $ 106 $ 151 § 1.89 § 165 § 143 § 094
Cash Dividends Per Share of Common Stock(© 475 % 160 § 150 § 135§ 125§ 115
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THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
For the Years Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Balance Sheet Data

Total Cash and Marketable Securities $ 745,733 $ 715,295 $701,048 $620,957 $593,857 $504,106
Total Assets 4,080,674 1,053,942 993,850 888,057 837,220 760,463
Total Debt 90,401 84,141 85,045 69,838 76,085 92,309
Unearned Insurance Premiums 406,311 403,855 357,185 312,838 255115 240,340
Loss Reserves 164,717 148,674 135,887 133,713 125,496 120,134
Shareholders’ Equity 308,208 291,876 283,177 258,002 248,832 197,026
Book Value Per Share(c) $ 1759 § 1653 $ 1573 § 1356 $ 1330 $ 1055
Common Shares Outstanding(@ 17,566 17,660 18,001 19,032 18,704 18,668
Other Data

AMIG's Property and Casualty Operations

Direct and Assumed Written Premiums $ 588,243 § 555,548 $500,984 $472,041 $446,248 $422982
Net Written Premium 561,515 523,105 471,336 439 863 391,770 342,310
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Ratio (GAAP) 5%.3% 57.8% 52.9% 51.2% 56.1% 55.1%
Underwriting Expense Ratio (CAAP) 41.3% 42.0% 43.3% 43.2% 40.8% 40.7%
Combined Ratio (GAAP) 100.6% 99.8% 96.2% 94.4% 96.9% 95.8%

M/G Transport's Transportation Operations

Net Revenues $ 2328 $ 34826 $ 33119 $ 31,327 $ 33,059 $ 34,933
Net income 296 1,079 1,809 1,169 2,994 3,126
Total Assets 22,469 24952 27,412 30,564 39,167 42914
Shareholders’ Equity 10,805 10,509 9,728 10,919 18,749 18,783
Footnotes:

(a) Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) in 2002 and 2001 include the effect of SFAS 133 adjustments of $(0.2) million and $1.1 million, respectively.

{b) On September 29, 1997, the Company's sportswear subsidiary sold substantially all of its assets to Brazos, Inc., a subsidiary of Brazos Sportswear, Inc.
The assets were sold for approximately $13.3 million in cash resulting in an after-tax loss on the disposal of approximately $3.3 million.

(c) Previously reported share information has been adjusted to refiect a three-for-one common stock split effective May 21, 1998 and a 2-for-1 stock
split effective July 17, 2002.

(d) On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 142 and recorded an impairment charge related to goodwill of $1.5 million, net of tax of
$0.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT’S IDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with our consolidated financial statements and the related
footnotes. This discussion contains forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements reflect our current views about
future events, are based on assumptions and are subject to
known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Many important
factors could cause actual results or achievements to differ
materially from any future results or achievements expressed
or implied by forward-looking statements.

Introduction

The discussions of “Results of Operations” and “Liquidity,
Capital Resources and Changes in Financial Condition"” address
our three reportable segments, which are manufactured
housing insurance, all other insurance products and services
and transportation. A summary description of the operations of
each of these segments is included below.

Our specialty insurance operations are conducted through
our wholly-owned subsidiary, American Modern Insurance
Group, Inc. (American Modern) which controls six property
and casualty insurance companies, two credit life insurance
companies, three licensed insurance agencies and three service
companies. American Modern is licensed, through its
subsidiaries, to write insurance premium in all 50 states and the
District of Columbia. Approximately 47% of American Modern's
property and casualty and credit life gross written premium
relates to physical damage insurance and related coverages on
manufactured homes, generally written for a term of 12 months
with many coverages similar to homeowner’s insurance policies.
All other insurance preducts and services include other specialty
insurance products such as site-built dwelling, motorcycle,
watercraft, recreational vehicle, extended service contract,
mortgage fire, coliateral protection, credit life, long-haul truck
physical damage, commercial, excess and surplus lines and also
includes the results of our fee producing subsidiaries.

M/G Transport Services, Inc. and MGT Services, Inc.
(collectively M/G Transport) operates a fleet of dry cargo barges
for the movement of dry bulk commodities such as petroleum
coke, ores, barite, fertilizers, sugar and other dry cargoes
primarily on the lower Mississippi River and its tributaries.

Overview of Recent Trends

Motorcycle and Site-built Dwelling Premium Increase

While manufactured housing insurance remains American
Modern’s largest single product, over the most recent
18 months, motorcycle and site-built dwelling insurance have
become more significant to the growth in premium volume.
In the second half of 2000, American Modern acquired the
motorsport book (motorcycle and, to a lesser extent,
snowmobile and watercraft) from GuideOne Insurance
Company. In 2002, motorcycle gross written premium
increased 52.5% over 2001 levels to $60.4 million. American
Modern's future growth in motorcycle premium is expected
to be more consistent with the rate of growth in our total
premium volume. Premium from site-built dwelling insurance

has increased for American Modern due to a tightening of
underwriting restrictions by standard carriers with respect to
conventional homeowner risks. in 2002, site-built dwelling
written premium increased 117.9% over 2001 levels to
$80.9 million. As a result of the standard carriers becoming
more selective in their risk selection, American Modern also
experienced increased premium volume in its standard
homeowner programs. However, during the third quarter of
2002, American Modern de-emphasized its standard
homeowner programs in favor of its dwelling fire programs.
American Modern is currently undertaking a careful review of
all of its site-built dwelling programs with the intent of
tightening the product offering to target only those properties
that fall outside the parameters of the standard homeowner's
insurance market. As a result of these actions, American
Modern’s premium production from its site-built dwelling
product lines is expected to be reduced in the near term from
its current levels.

Manufactured Housing Premium

Manufactured homes have historically represented
approximately one out of every five new single family housing
starts in the United States. The industry became over built
during the period between 1997 and 1999 as credit became
readily available. New manufactured home sales were slower
than historical averages during 2002 and this trend will likely
continue in 2003. As a result, American Modern has
experienced a 10% decrease in its manufactured housing
insurance premium volume due to a decline in the premium
generated through its point of sale channel of distribution
coupled with American Modern's decision to terminate
unprofitable business.

Rate Increases

Over the past 12 months, we have been approved for and
are implementing nationwide rate increases in our manufactured
housing products. The majority of these increases, which
have averaged between nine and ten percent, were approved
as of December 31, 2002. We have also received approval for,
and are implementing rate increases in many of our other
major product lines. In 2003, American Modern is filing for
single digit rate increases in its manufactured housing products
and for double digit increases in several of its other products.

Fire Loss Ratio

American Modern experienced higher than normal levels
of losses caused by fire in its manufactured housing and
site-built lines during the second half of 2000 and continuing
through most of 2001 and 2002. it is American Modern's
experience that the fire loss ratio increases during economic
downturns. In response to this trend, American Modern has
been aggressively pursuing rate increases in its manufactured
housing products and site-built programs. While American
Modem'’s fire loss ratio remains higher than normal, the
manufactured housing fire ratio improved considerably during
2002 decreasing to 22.9% from 24.7 % in the prior year.
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THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Changing Mix of American Modern's Distribution Channels
American Modern has experienced a significant increase in
the percentage of its gross written premium generated through
its agency channel driven by its growth in motorcycle premium
and also due to American Modern's successful conversion of
agency books cf business to American Modern from other
insurance companies. American Modern's premium volume
generated by its lender and point of sale channels decreased
in 2001 and also in 2002 as a result of the slowdown in new
manufactured housing sales and the decision to terminate
certain unprofitable books of business.

Discontinued Commercial Liability

In September 2001, American Modern announced that it
was exiting the commercial liability line of coverages that had
been provided to manufactured home parks and dealerships.
The net earned premium related to this line was $11.3 million,
$17.6 million and $16.4 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. During 2002, American Modern continued to write
commercial liability coverages in those states that had required
a longer period to exit the market. This premium volume, on a
written basis, was only $3.4 million in 2002 and is expected to
be minimal in 2003. In 2002, the underwriting performance of
this line substantially improved over the prior year.

Shift Away from Chattel Financing

Manufactured housing sales have traditionally been
financed as personal property through a financing transaction
referred to as chattel financing. Several large chattel lenders
over the past 18 months have ceased, or substantially reduced,
lending for manufactured housing. As a result, manufactured
housing sales have slowed and there has been a shift to more
traditional mortgage loan financing on manufactured homes.
American Modern has or had relationships with several of the
chattel lenders who reduced their lending or exited this market.
This, coupled with American Modern's decision to terminate
certain unprofitable business in the lender channel, has resulted
in a decrease in the amount of premium volume American
Modern has generated through its lender channel.

Resurts OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 COMPARED
TC YEAR ENDED DECEMERER 31, 2001

Manufactured Housing

Manufactured housing gross written premiums decreased
9.6% to $304.1 million in 2002 from $336.5 million in 2001.
The manufactured housing insurance product is our primary
product offering and currently represents 47.8% of our total
property and casualty and life gross written premium. The
decrease in gross written premium related to this product
offering is due primarily to depressed market conditions within
the manufactured housing segment coupled with American
Modem's decision to terminate certain unprofitable businesses
related to this product offering in 2001.

While manufactured housing gross written premiums
decreased in 2002, the earned premiums for manufactured
housing increased 2.2% to $325.3 million in 2002 from
$318.3 million in 2001. This increase was primarily due to the
earnings related to multi-year premiums written in the prior
year. The manufactured housing combined ratio was 99.4%
in 2002 compared to 97.1% in 2001. The increase in the
combined ratio was generally due to an increase in catastrophe
losses offset by an improvement in the fire loss ratio in 2002
compared to 2001. Losses and loss adjustment expenses are
discussed further for the total insurance segment below. Several
other items, such as investment income, are allocated to product
lines, but are more meaningfully discussed in total and have
been included in the sections that follow.

fn 2002, Conseco Agency, American Modern's largest
customer, accounted for less than 10% of American Modern's
total property and casualty gross written premium as compared
to approximately 16% in 2001. Approximately 90% of the
premium written through Conseco in 2002 resulted from the
renewal of policies from existing Conseco Agency policyholders
and, therefore, was not dependent upon new loan financing.

All Other insurance

Gross written premiums in American Modern's other
specialty property and casualty products (non-manufactured
housing products) collectively increased 29.7% to $284.1 million
in 2002 compared to $219.0 million in the prior year. Driving
this growth were American Modern’s site built dwelling and
motorcycle products, which together increased 84.2% in 2002
as compared to 2001. However, these are relatively new product
offerings which are not expected to grow at this pace in 2003.

Credit life gross written premium increased 4.7% to
$46.8 million in 2002 from $44.7 million in 2001. Due to
recent industry regulations, the industry is transitioning to a
monthly pay product which will result in a decrease in gross
written credit life premium in 2003, however, earned premium
should not be affected by this change.

American Modern's other insurance income decreased
7.0% from $7.2 million in 2001 to $6.7 million in 2002. This
decrease was primarily due to the closing of an unprofitable
agency operation. American Modern Insurance Group's
portfolio tracking operation, Ameritrac®, continues to expand
its client base and grow its loan-tracking portfolio. Ameritrac®
and our other wholly owned insurance agencies continue to be
significant contributors to American Modern's gross written
property and casualty insurance premiums as they collectively
generated $89.9 million in premium volume in 2002.

Excluding the impact of net investment income and net
capital gains and losses, the pre-tax loss from all other
insurance collectively was $2.1 million in 2002 compared to
$5.9 million in 2001,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND REsULTS OF OPERATIONS { CONTINUED)

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Combined Insurance (Manufactured Housing and
All Other Insurance)

Insurance Investment Income and Realized Capital Gains

Although net investment income is allocated to segments
and product lines, the investment portfolio is generally managed
as a whole and therefore is more meaningfully discussed in total.
American Modern's net investment income (before taxes and
excluding net realized investment gains and losses) increased
5.0% to $35.5 million in 2002 from $33.8 million in 2001. Net
investment income increased due to cash flow generated from
operations. Conversely, due fo the depressed interest rate
environment, reinvestment rates relative to American Modern's
fixed income portfolio continue to be down. The annualized
pre-tax equivalent investment yield on American Modern's
fixed income investments, which is net interest income divided
by the average amount of fixed income assets, was 6.0% in
2002 as compared to 6.2% in 2001.

Excluding the impact of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and impairments,
American Modern's pre-tax net realized capital gains (losses)
decreased from a gain in 2001 of $0.9 million to a loss of
$2.0 million in 2002. The impact of embedded derivatives on
American Modern's net realized capital gains (losses), on a pretax
basis, was a $1.1 million gain in 2001 and loss of $0.2 million
in 2002. We conduct quarterly comprehensive reviews of
individual portfolic holdings that have market values less than
their respective costs for “other-than-temporary” impairment.
These quarterly reviews led us to realize impairment losses
of approximately $4.6 million in 2002, which are included in
capital losses. The impairment losses that were realized in 2002
emanated primarily from the higher-yielding corporate bond
and convertible portfclios. Other-than-temporary impairment
losses realized in 2001 were not material.

Insurance Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE)

Insurance fosses and loss adjustment expenses increased
16.7% to $341.0 million in 2002 compared to $292.2 million in
2001. This increase was due to the 13.7% growth in net earned
premium and an increase in the level of catastrophe losses offset
by an improvement in fire related losses in 2002. Pre-tax weather
related catastrophe losses increased to $32.6 million in 2002
from $21.0 million in 2001. Hurricane Lili, in the fourth quarter
of 2002, resulted in $10.2 million of pre-tax losses.

Insurance Commissions and Other Policy Acquisition Costs

Commissions and other palicy acquisition costs increased
16.3% to $169.5 milfion in 2002 from $145.8 million in 2001,
This increase was primarily due to the 13.7% growth in net
earned premium and certain non-recurring policy acquisition
costs related to the transition of the motorcycle business to
American Modern.

Overall Property and Casualty Underwriting Results

American Modern's property and casualty operations
produced a pre-tax underwriting loss (property and casualty
insurance earned premiums less incurred losses, commissions
and operating expenses) of $3.7 million in 2002 compared to a
pre-tax underwriting profit of $1.0 million in 2001. These
results produced a combined ratio of 100.6% in 2002
compared to 99.8% in 2001. The weaker results in 2002 are
primarily due to higher catastrophe losses in 2002 compared to
the prior year. Increased losses from the motorcycle and
site-built dwelling product lines were also contributing factors.
Fire losses continue to be above normal but have decreased in
2002 relative to the prior year. Assuming normal weather
patterns, we would expect the combined ratio to be in the
range of 96.0% to 98.0% in 2003.

Transportation

Transportation revenues decreased 33.1% from $34.8 million
in 2001 to $23.3 million in 2002. The decrease in transportation
revenues was primarily attributable to a decrease in revenues
from one major source of loadings. In addition, due to
unfavorable market conditions during 2002, we elected to
reduce our capacity by returning barges on short-term rentals
and scrapping older barges. We anticipate single digit revenue
growth for transportation in 2003 compared to 2002 levels.

Transportation operating expenses decreased 31.2% from
$32.9 miillion in 2001 to $22.6 million in 2002 due to the decrease
in loadings from one major source and the reduction of capacity.

Corporate

Other operating and administrative expenses decreased
$.8 million to $.5 million due primarily to decreases in certain
compensation based expenses related to bonuses and
performance based stock awards. Offsetting these decreases
in expenses were increases in certain professional fees related
to special employee benefit studies and legal, audit and other
fees incurred with the company’s intended stock offering in
2002 which was subsequently withdrawn due to general
market conditions.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED
TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Manufactured Housing

Manufactured housing and related gross written premium
in 2001 of $336.5 million was comparable to 2000 levels of
$338.6 million. The mobile home and related line of business
has traditionally experienced a consistent level of growth. The
static level of production from this product line in 2001,
however, reflects an overall decline in the level of manufactured
housing new home shipments in 2001 compared to 2000.
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The earned premiums for manufactured housing increased
2.7% to $318.3 million in 2001 compared to $309.9 million in
2000. The combined ratic for manufactured housing was
97.1% in 2001 compared to 94.6% in 2000. The increase in
the manufactured housing combined ratio was primarily due to
an increase in higher than normal fire losses in 2001. The
impact of fire losses is discussed in total under “Insurance
Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” section that follows.

All Other insurance

The growth in gross written premium in American Modern'’s
other specialty insurance (non-manufactured housing products)
was due primarily to volume increases in all other insurance,
including the motorcycle, site-built dwelling, mortgage fire,
recreational vehicle and credit life books of business. The most
significant growth came from the motorcycle book that was
acquired from GuideOne insurance Company in 2001
contributing $44.5 million in gross written premium in 2001
as compared to $6.4 million in the prior year. Credit life gross
written premium increased 12.5% to $44.7 million in 2001
from $39.7 million in 2000. This continued growth was
primarily the result of an expansion of the credit life business
with a large financial institution customer. Premium rate
increases also contributed to American Modern's overall gross
premium growth, but to a lesser degree than volume increases.
American Modern is also seeking premium rate increases in
various states in 2002 as part of its operating strategy.

Other Insurance Income (Fee Income)

American Modern's other insurance income decreased to
$7.2 million in 2001 from $8.8 million in 2000. This decrease
was primarily the result of the decline in American Modern's
warranty and loan facilitation businesses. Although third-party
fee income decreased in 2001, gross written premium generated
by Ameritrac®, American Modern's insurance coverage tracking
operations, in addition to premiums generated by our insurance
agencies, increased 6.1% to $98.3 million in 2001.

Combined insurance (Manufactured Housing and
All Other Insurance)

General Overview of Insurance Operations
and Insurance Premium

American Modern's gross written premium for the year
ended December 31, 2001 increased 11.0% to $600.2 million
from $540.7 million in 2000. Net earned premium for the
year increased at a rate of 11.4% to $508.2 million from
$456.1 million in 2000. This growth occurred despite on-going
challenges within the manufactured housing industry, which
resulted in a slight decrease in American Modern’s manufactured
housing premium volume in 2001. Diversification of American
Modern's product offering was an important facet of 2001
growth performance, as was the continued diversification of its

distribution channels. From a product diversification perspective,
manufactured housing gross written premium represented
56.1% of all specialty insurance premium in 2001 compared to
62.6% in 2000. From a distribution channel perspective in
2001, American Modern experienced a 57.9% increase in gross
written premium through the agency channel, which rose to
30.8% of the total in 2001 from 21.6% in 2000. That increase
was driven by expanded and new relationships with leaders in
the general agent marketplace, as well as significant premium
conversion opportunities in the manufactured housing,
motorcycle and watercraft lines of business. Despite the positive
contributions from a top-line perspective, American Modern’s
contributions to our overall earnings for 2001 were somewhat
depressed as a result of losses from commercial liability lines, a
product line that American Modern decided to exit in
September 2001, and higher-than-normal fire losses.

Insurance Investment Income and Realized Capital Gains

Although net investment income is allocated to segments
and product lines, the investment portfolio is generally
managed as a whole and therefore is more meaningfully
discussed in total. American Modern's net investment income
(before taxes and excluding net realized capital gains and the
impact of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities") increased 9.8% to $33.8 million in 2001 from
$30.8 million in 2000. The increase in investment income was
primarily the result of the continued investment of the cash
flow generated from underwriting and investment activities.
On a cost basis, American Modern's invested asset base (cash
and investments) of $651.1 million at December 31, 2001,
increased $27.7 million from December 31, 2000.

Excluding the impact of SFAS No. 133, American Modern's
after-tax net realized capital gains decreased to $0.6 million,
$0.03 per share (diluted), in 2001, from $3.0 million, $0.16 per
share (diluted), in 2000. The impact of accounting for
embedded options under SFAS No. 133, which we adopted on
January 1, 2001, increased net realized investment gains on an
after-tax basis by $0.7 million, $0.04 per share (diluted), in 2001.

Insurance Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE)
Insurance losses and LAE increased 21.4% to $292.2 million
in 2001 from $240.7 million in 2000. This increase was due to
the continued growth in earned premium coupled with
increases in fire-related losses, discontinued commercial liability
losses and catastrophe losses. Higher than normal levels of fire
losses added $11.0 million (pre-tax, before any estimated
adjustments for contingent commissions) of additional loss costs
in 2001 over 2000. Losses stemming from the discontinued
commercial liability business were $3.0 million (pre-tax) higher
in 2001 than in 2000 and the impact of catastrophes was
$9.7 million (pre-tax) higher in 2001 compared to 2000.
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THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Insurance Commissions, Other Policy Acquisition Costs and
Operating and Administration Expenses

Commissions, other policy acquisition costs and operating
and administrative expenses increased 5.4% to $219.1 million
in 2001 from $207.8 million in 2000. This increase is due
primarily to the continued growth in earned premium and
other insurance income coupled with a decrease in contingent
commission expense due to a higher loss ratio in 2001
compared to 2000.

Property and Casualty Underwriting Results

American Modern's property and casualty operations
generated pre-tax underwriting income of $1.0 million in 2001
compared to $17.0 million in 2000. This resulted in a combined
ratio of 99.8% in 2001 compared to 96.2% in 2000. Again,
the largest contributors to these weaker results were higher
than normal fire losses, discontinued commercial liability losses
and higher levels of catastrophe losses. Higher than normal
fire-related losses increased the combined ratio by 2.9 percentage
points in 2001 compared to only 1.3 percentage points in 2000.
Discontinued commercial liability losses contributed 2.3 percentage
points to the combined ratio in 2001 compared to 1.9 percentage
points in 2000. Catastrophe losses, which were lower than normal
in both years, contributed 4.3 percentage points to the combined
ratio in 2001 as compared to 2.6 percentage points in 2000.

Transportation

Excluding a one-time pre-tax capital gain of $1.0 million
from the sale of transportation equipment in 2000,
transportation revenues increased 8.4% to $34.8 million in
2001 from $32.1 million in the prior year. Pre-tax operating
profit (excluding capital gains) decreased to $1.7 millien in
2001 from $2.8 million in 2000. The fluctuations in both
revenue and operating profit are due to a change in shipping
patterns to longer duration, and less profitable shipments in
2001 compared to 2000.

Corporate

Corporate operating and administrative expenses
decreased $1.0 million in 2001 from $2.3 million in 2000 due
to a reduction in bonus compensation expense as a result of
the reduction in profits and certain severance costs incurred in
2000. These items collectively reduced operating expenses in
2001 by $.8 million on a pre-tax basis.

During 2000, Midland recorded a pre-tax gain of
$7.4 million from the curtailment and settlement of a portion
of its defined benefit pension plans. This gain was offset by
$6.9 million (pre-tax) of one-time expenses related to
consulting agreements with retired executives and excise taxes
of $0.5 million on the withdrawal of a portion of overfunded
pension assets. The net result of these transactions, exclusive of
the excise tax, was included in the Consolidated Statements of
Income as Other operating and administrative expenses in
2000. The excise tax component was included in the Provision
for federal income tax. The net impact of these transactions
was a net after-tax charge to earnings in 2000 of less than
$200,000, or 1 cent per share on a post-split, dilutive basis.

LiQuiprry, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND
CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Consolidated Operations

Obligations and Commitments

We have certain obligations and commitments to make
future payments under contracts. As of December 31, 2002 the
aggregate obligations (excluding the $7.5 million of future
commitments relating to barge acquisitions as discussed below)
on a consolidated basis were (amounts in 000's):

Payments Due By Period
Less Than  2-5 After

Total 1 Year Years 5 Years
Long-term Debt $47163 $1,510 $%$45653 $ —
Other Notes Payable 43,238 43,238 — —
Annual Commitments
Under Non-
Cancelable Leases 8,291 1,266 2,901 4,124
Total $98,692 $46,014 $48,554 $4,124

Other than the annual commitments under non-cancelable
leases noted above, there are no other material off-balance
sheet obligations or guarantees.

Capital Expenditures

Expenditures for acquisition of property plant and
equipment amounted to $10.7 million for 2002 and
$9.7 million during the prior year. The amounts expended for
the software development costs capitalized in connection with
the development of modernLINK®, our proprietary information
systems and web enablement initiative, amounted to
$6.3 million in 2002 and the total software development cost
capitalized related to this system has been $9.9 million from
inception-to-date with an unamortized balance of $8.2 million
at December 31, 2002. The initiative is being designed,
developed and implemented in periodic phases to ensure its cost
effectiveness and functionality. We are approximately 24 months
into the process, which we expect to be completed over the next
24 to 36 months. The current budget for this project calls for
additional expenditures of approximately $21.4 million over the
next 3 years. However, actual costs may be more or less than
what we estimate. The cost of the development and
implementation is expected to be funded out of operating cash
flow. This system is in development and its effectiveness has not
been proven. Further, significant changes to the technology
interface between American Modern and its distribution channel
participants and policyholders, while unlikely, could significantly
disrupt or alter its distribution channel relationships. If the new
information systems are ultimately deemed ineffective, it could
result in an impairment charge to our capitalized costs.
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Investment Portfolio

The Company maintains a diversified investment portfolio
consisting of both fixed income and equity securities that are
classified as “available-for-sale” and are therefore valued at
market value in the financial statements at December 31, 2002.
The following summarizes our investment portfolio by category
on December 31, 2002 (amounts in 000's):

Gross Unrealized Market
2002 Cost Gains Losses Value
Debt Securities:
Governments $105,208 $ 6,146 % 38 $111,316
Municipals 162,923 11,214 10 174,127
Corporates 216,493 13,717 2,877 227,333
Cash Equivalents 73,338 — — 73,338
Other—Notes
Receivable 7,639 — — 7,639
Accrued
Interest 7,167 — — 7,167
Total 572,768 31,077 2,925 600,920
Equity Securities 89,616 58,182 10,583 137,215
Embedded Derivatives 888 — — 888
Accrued Dividends 735 — — 735
Total 91,239 58,182 10,583 138,838
Total Marketable
Securities $664,007 $89,259 $13,508 $739,758

There is a readily determinable market value for all
individual securities held in our portfolio with the exception
of several notes/mortgage receivables and a mandatory
redeemable preferred stock security that collectively have a
carrying cost of $11.0 million. These securities do not trade on
any recognized exchange or in any market, however, the
Company continually monitors these investment and believes
that their carrying costs are a reasonable approximation of their
fair values. These investments are current with respect to the
payment of their interest and/or dividend obligations.

Included as part of the equity and fixed income portfolios
is a portfolio of higher yielding, corporate bonds and convertible
securities that had a market value and cost at December 31, 2002 of
approximately $73.9 miillion. This portfolio carried an average quality
rating of approximately “"BB". The total fixed income portfolio
(including the higher yielding, corporate bonds and convertible
securities) carried an average quality rating of approximately “AA".

Other than our US Bancorp common stock holding,
valued at $52.2 million with a cost basis of $2.2 million at
December 31, 2002, we have no other significant concentrations.
The Company maintains a diversified portfolic that is actively
monitored for concentrations to individual issuers and sectors.

At December 31, 2002, our equity security holdings that
had an unrealized loss had a total cost of $49.4 million and a
total market value of $38.8 million. These securities were
spread across 11 identified industry sectors with the largest
concentration in the Financial sector having a total cost of
$11.7 million and a total market value of $9.8 million. Our
largest gross unrealized loss in an identified sector was in the
Utilities sector with a tota! cost of $6.8 million and a total
market value of $4.7 million.

As of December 31, 2002, the gross unrealized losses in
the equity portfolio were comprised of approximately 191
individual (of a total of 268) securities that are trading below
their respective costs. For those equity securities that are
trading below their cost, the average unrealized loss is $55,409
on an average cost basis of $258,758, or approximately 21.4%
as of December 31, 2002, which is generally reflective of the
overall equity market performance observed in 2002. With
respect to the fixed income portfolio, the unrealized losses as of
December 31, 2002 are comprised of 58 (of a total of 588)
securities that were trading below their respective costs. For
those fixed income securities trading below their cost, the
average unrealized loss was $50,440 on an average cost basis
of $500,990, or approximately 10.1%. There is no single
position trading below its cost at December 31, 2002 that
represents more than 0.8% of the total portfolio. Further, the
largest unrealized loss for a single security was associated with
an equity holding that had an unrealized loss of $539,000.

At December 31, 2002, our fixed income security holdings
that had an unrealized loss had a total cost of $29.1 million and
a total market value of $26.1 million. These securities were
spread across nine identified financial asset categories with the
largest concentration in Corporates/Industrials having a total
cost of $8.3 million and a total market value of $6.9 million.
The Corporate/Industrial asset category also represented our
largest loss exposure to any single identified category.

The following chart summarizes the fixed income securities
that had unrealized losses at December 31, 2002 by maturity
(amounts in 000's):

Market

Cost Value
One year or less $ 509 $ 503
After one year through five years 3,584 3,378
After five years through ten years 17,379 14,896
After ten years 7,585 7.355
Total . $29,057 $26,132

At December 31, 2002, we had a total of $16.7 million of
equity securities and $5.1 million of fixed income securities on a
cost basis that were trading below cost for one year or longer.
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Based on the characteristics management uses to evaluate
individual securities for impairment, such as credit worthiness,
length of time of continuous decline, management's intention to
hold and prospect for recovery, we believe the unrealized losses
included in our portfolio to be temporary at December 31, 2002.

We conduct quarterly comprehensive reviews of individual
portfolio holdings that have market values less than their
respective costs. in conducting these reviews and identifying
those securities that are deemed to be other-than-temporarily
impaired, we analyze facts and circumstances specific to each
individual investment such as the length of time the fair value
has been below the cost, our intent to sell or hold the security,
the expectation for each individual security's performance, the
credit worthiness and related liquidity of the issuer and the issuer’s
business sector. This analysis is conducted with the assistance
of our external professional money managers who are familiar
with the circumstances of each individual security. Finally, we
consider factors and circumstances surrounding the individual
securities that are trading below their cost when evaluating the
possibility of additional other-than-temporary impairments that
could be present within our investment portfolio.

These quarterly reviews led us to realize “other-than-
temporary” impairment losses of approximately $4.6 million in
2002. Realized impairment losses were comprised of 10 separate
transactions with an average impairment of $464,000. The
largest single impairment charge was $947,000. There were no
material other-than-temporary impairment losses realized in
2001. Impairment charges are included in the consolidated
financial statements in “Net Realized Investment Gains/(Losses)."
It is reasonably possible that the Company may incur further
impairment losses in 2003 if existing market conditions continue.
In 2003, our quarterly review for impairment will consider the
aforementioned factors as well as any other relevant market
considerations in making such a determination. The extent of
such potential impairments, should management conclude an
unrealized loss is other than temporary, while not possible to
predict with certainty, would initially include those securities
having an unrealized loss at December 31, 2002.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, we realized gross
capital gains of $9.7 million and gross realized capital losses of
$16.6 million, including $4.6 million of impairment related losses.

Realized capital gains for fixed income securities were
comprised of 244 separate trades with an average capital gain
of $25,955 per trade. Realized capital gains for equity securities
was comprised of 442 separate trades with an average capital
gain of $7,724 per trade.

Realized capital losses (exclusive of impairments) for fixed
income securities were comprised of 136 separate trades with
an average capital loss of $44,568 per trade. Realized capital
losses for equity securities (exclusive of impairments) was
comprised of 821 separate trades with an average capital loss
of $6,976 per trade. The largest single realized capital loss was
$1.4 million. This security had been trading below its cost for
less than 4 months immiediately prior to our sale of the security.

Other

On June 17, 2002, we announced a two-for-one stock
split effective July 17, 2002. This stock split increased our
common stock shares outstanding to 17.6 million shares as of
December 31, 2002.

On July 17, 2002, we filed a registration statement with
the Securities and Exchange Commission for a proposed
secondary offering of our common stock. The proposed offering
of 2,450,000 shares, included 2,000,000 shares to be offered
by the Company and 450,000 shares to be offered by selling
stockholders. In August 2002, we withdrew this registration
statement due to adverse market conditions. The withdrawal of
the registration statement did not, and is not expected to have
a material impact on our liquidity as we believe our current
capital resources are sufficient to support our business model.

On January 25, 2001 our Board of Directors approved an
increase in the number of shares authorized under our share
repurchase program by 1,000,000 shares (on a post split basis).
159,378 shares were repurchased under our share repurchase and
incentive programs in 2002 and a total of 596,000 shares remain
authorized for repurchase under terms of the Board authority,
On April 25, 2002, our Board of Directors approved a two-year
extension to the share repurchase program that will run through
the date of the Board's second quarterly meeting in 2004. The
resolution does not require us to repurchase our shares, but
rather gives management discretion to make purchases based
on market conditions and our capital requirements.

We paid dividends to our shareholders of $3.0 million and
$2.8 million during 2002 and 2001, respectively. In January of
2003, our Board of Directors approved an indicated annual
dividend of 19 cents per share from 17.5 cents per share in 2002.

We expect that cash and other liquid investments, coupled
with future operating cash flows and our short-term borrowing
capacity, will be readily available to meet our operating cash
requirements for the next 12 months.

Holding Company Operations

Midland and American Modern are holding companies
which rely primarily on dividends and management fees from
subsidiaries to assist in servicing debt, paying holding company
operating expenses and paying dividends to the respective
shareholders. The payment of dividends to these holding
companies from American Modern's insurance subsidiaries is
restricted by state regulatory agencies. Such restrictions,
however, have not had, and are not expected to have, a
significant impact on our, or American Modern's, liquidity or
our and American Modern'’s ability to meet our respective long
or short-term operating, financing or capital obligations.

Midland has a commercial paper program under which
qualified purchasers may invest in the short-term unsecured
notes of Midland. As of December 31, 2002, we had $4.2 million
of commercial paper debt outstanding, $3.8 million of which
represented notes held either directly or indirectly by our executive
officers and directors. The effective yield paid to all participants
in this program was 1.3% as of December 31, 2002, a rate that
is considered to be competitive with the market rates offered for
simitar instruments. Midland’'s commercial paper is payable upon
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demand and is not rated. As of December 31, 2002, Midland
also had $73.0 million of conventional short-term credit lines
available at costs not exceeding prime borrowing rates, of which
$39.0 million was outstanding. These lines of credit contain
minimal covenants and are typically drawn and repaid over
periods ranging from two weeks to several months. Additional
short-term borrowing lines are available at the discretion of
various lending institutions with comparable rates and terms.
These short-term borrowings increased $13.0 million from
$26.0 million since December 31, 2001 due primarily to
transactions related to associate incentive and awards programs,
a return of assets to our pension plan received in a prior year,
the payment of dividends to our shareholders and the financing
needs related to our commercial paper program. We also have
a mortgage obligation related to the financing of our corporate
headquarters building. As of December 31, 2002, the
outstanding balance of this mortgage was $16.5 million. This
mortgage obligation includes normal and customary debt
covenants for instruments of this type. Monthly principal and
interest payments are required until maturity in December,
2005. The effective interest rate on this obligation is 6.8%.

The Company maintains a qualified defined benefit pension
plan (the “Qualified Plan”) and an unfunded retirement plan to
provide benefits in excess of amounts permitted to be paid under
the provisions of the tax law to participants in the Qualified
Plan. The Qualified Plan covers employees who were employed
prior to March 31, 2000 and elected not to transfer their retirement
benefit under the Qualified Plan to a defined contribution plan.
Employees hired after March 31, 2000 are not eligible to participate
in the Qualified Plan but are eligible for the defined contribution
plan. There were approximately 185 and 204 active Qualified
Plan participants at January 1, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The number of active plan participants is expected to decrease in
future years as the Qualified Plan is not open to new employees.

The cost of our defined benefit pension plans is not
significant to our operations and changes in pension plan
assumptions will not have a material impact on our operating
results. Our pension expense/(income) for all defined benefit
pension plans approximated $571,000 and ($282,000) for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and is
calculated based upon actuarial assumptions, including an
expected long-term rate of return on our Qualified Plan assets
of 9.4% and a discount rate of 6.75%. In developing our
expected long-term rate of return assumption, we evaluated
input from our actuaries, including their review of asset class
return expectations long-term inflation assumptions and our
actual 10-year historical average asset plan return of 10.9%.
Our expected long-term rate of return on Qualified Plan assets
is based on asset allocation range assumptions of 50% to 80%
in equity securities and 20% to 50% in fixed income securities.
Our actual asset allocation as of December 31, 2002 was
approximately 55% in equity securities and 45% in fixed income
securities. We regularly review our actual asset allocation and
periodically rebalance our investments to our targeted
allocation when considered appropriate. We will continue to
evaluate our actuarial assumptions, including our expected rate
of return, at least annually, and will adjust as necessary.

We base our determination of pension expense on a
market-related valuation of assets, which recognizes
investment gains or losses over a five-year period from the year
in which they occur. Investment gains or losses for this purpose
include realized and unrealized gains or losses using the
market-related value of assets.

The discount rate that we utilize for determining future
pension obligations is based on a review of long-term bond
yields that receive one of the two highest ratings given by a
recognized rating agency. The discount rate determined on this
basis has decreased to 6.75% at December 31, 2002 from
7.25% at December 31, 2001. Future actual pension expense
will depend on future investment performance, changes in
future discount rates and various other factors related to the
populations participating in our pension plans.

The impact of actuarial changes of our defined benefit
plans is lessened, given our pension plans were frozen in 2000
and the majority of participants elected to opt out of the plan
and move into our defined contribution plan. For instance,
lowering the expected long-term rate of return on our Qualified
Plan assets by 1.0% (from 9.4% to 8.4%) would have increased
our pre-tax pension expense for fiscal 2002 by approximately
$200,000. Lowering the discount rate by 0.5% would have
increased our pre-tax pension expense for all defined benefit
pension plans for fiscal 2002 by approximately $75,000.

The value of our Qualified Plan assets has increased from
$15.2 million at December 31, 2001 to $16.5 million at
December 31, 2002. The increase was primarily due to a
$3.6 million reversion of previously withdrawn plan assets,
which was offset by investment losses of $1.6 million and
benefit payments of $0.7 miliion. The market value of the
Qualified Plan assets was less than the Accumulated Benefit
Obligation by $663,000 at December 31, 2002, down from an
excess of $130,000 at December 31, 2001. We believe that,
based on our actuarial assumptions, we will not be required to
make any cash contributions to our Qualified Plan in 2003 and
do not expect the defined benefit plans to impact our liquidity
in the upcoming years.

Insurance

American Madern generates cash inflows primarily from
insurance premium, investment income, proceeds from the sale
of marketable securities and maturities of debt security
investments. The principal cash outflows for the insurance
operations relate to the payment of claims, commissions,
premium taxes, operating expenses, capital expenditures,
income taxes, dividends and inter-company borrowings to us
and the purchase of marketable securities. in each of the
periods presented, funds generated from the insurance
operating activities were used primarily to purchase investment
grade marketable securities, accounting for the majority of the
cash used in investing activities.

The market value of American Modern's investment
portfolio increased 5.3% from December 31, 2001, to
$744.8 million at December 31, 2002. This increase in the
market value of the investment portfolio was the result of the
investment of cash flow from underwriting activities and the
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reinvestment of investment income plus a $3.4 million increase
in the unrealized appreciation in the market value of securities
held. The increase in the unrealized appreciation was due to a
$10.1 million increase in unrealized appreciation related to the
fixed income portfolio offset by a $6.8 million decrease in the
unrealized appreciation related to the equity portfolio. American
Modern's largest equity holding, 2.3 million shares of U.S.
Bancorp, increased to $49.5 million as of December 31, 2002
from $48.9 million as of December 31, 2001.

The average maturity and duration of American Modern's
fixed income investment portfolio as of December 31, 2002
was 5.1 years and 3.9 years, respectively, which management
believes provides adequate asset/liability matching.

American Modern has a $60.0 million long-term credit
facility available on a revolving basis at various rates. As of
December 31, 2002, there was $30.0 million outstanding
under these facilities.

During the first quarter of 2002, American Modern entered
into an interest rate swap agreement with a consortium of three
banks. Under the terms of this agreement, the floating interest
rate related to $30.0 million outstanding under American
Modern's long-term credit facility has been effectively fixed at
5.6% until December 1, 2005, the maturity date. The fair value
of this agreement as of December 31, 2002 was a liability of
$1.9 million and is included in Other Payables and Accruals.

Accounts receivable is primarily comprised of premium due
from both policyholders and agents. In the case of receivables
due directly from policyholders, policies are cancelable in the
event of non-payment and thus offer minimal credit exposure.
Approximately 78% of American Modern's accounts receivables
relate to premium due directly from policyholders as of
December 31, 2002. In the case of receivables due from agents,
American Modern has extended payment terms that are
customary and normal in the insurance industry. Management
monitors its credit exposure with its agents and related
concentrations on a regular basis. However, as collectibility of
such receivables is dependent upon the financial stability of the
agent, American Modern cannot assure collections in full.
Where management believes appropriate, American Modern has
provided a reserve for such exposures. Since December 31, 2001,
American Modern's accounts receivable has decreased $3.0 million
to $79.7 million as of December 31, 2002 due to the continued
growth in insurance premiums written offset by the $9.6 million
reduction in receivable due from Conseco Agency, inc.

American Modern’s receivable balance from its largest
customer, Conseco Agency, Inc., decreased from $20.7 million as
of December 31, 2001 to $11.1 million as of December 31, 2002.
Conseco Agency filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy on
January 31, 2003, foliowing the Chapter 11 filing of its' parent
company on December 18, 2002. The Conseco Agency receivable
is current at December 31, 2002. While we anticipate collection
of the entire amount that is owed, it is possible that American
Modern might not collect the full amount. If that happened, it
could negatively impact our financial condition and results.

American Modern's receivable balance from Conseco
Agency is secured by a pledge of the Agency's expirations and
renewals on American Modern's in-force policies written

through Conseco Agency. On February 3, 2003, the bankruptcy
judge in the Conseco Agency Chapter 11 proceedings approved
a motion filed by Conseco Agency seeking authority to continue
doing business with American Modern, and with Conseco’s
other insurance partners, on a business as usual basis.

Various suitors have expressed an interest in Conseco. As of
February 28, 2003, the most likely scenarios involved either a sale
of Conseco Agency as a going concern under section 363 of the
Bankruptcy Code, or a recapitalization of the Agency's parent
under a Plan of Reorganization. Since we do not yet know what
will transpire, we cannot be certain of the future course of
American Modern's business relationship with Consecc Agency.
However, American Modern's management believes that the
company is well positioned to continue its business relationship
with Conseco Agency, and/or its successors, regardless of what
may happen in Conseco's Chapter 11 proceedings.

Reinsurance recoverables and prepaid reinsurance
premium increased to $76.6 million at December 31, 2002
from $69.8 million at December 31, 2001. This increase was
primarily due to a $8.6 million increase in ceded unearned
premium offset by decreases in paid loss recoverables and
ceded loss reserves since December 31, 2001. This fluctuation
was due, in part, to the fact that American Modern
experienced significant growth in its credit life operation, which.
cedes a significant portion of its gross premium to reinsurers.
The increase in reinsurance recoverables and prepaid
reinsurance premium is not expected to have an impact on
American Modern's liquidity and capital resources.

American Modern's property and casualty operations
specialize in writing shorter tailed property and casualty lines of
business. American Modern does not write fonger tailed
business such as asbestos-related illness, environmental
remediation or product liability.

American Modern's gross loss reserves at December 31, 2002
totaled $164.7 million. The gross loss reserves included
$131.7 million for our property and casualty companies,
$11.2 million for our life companies and $21.8 million for
outstanding checks and drafts at December 31, 2002. At
December 31, 2002, loss reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables,
for our property and casualty and life companies totaled
$115.6 million and $5.0 million, respectively. Management's
recorded best estimate, on a net basis, for our property and
casualty companies of $115.6 million is based on various
assumptions, including, but not limited to, historical experience
and historical loss patterns. Management's estimate was affirmed
by the actuaries’ estimated range for American Modern's property
and casualty net loss reserves of $108.8 million to $119.5 million.

As of December 31, 2001 the estimated net reserve for
property and casualty losses and loss adjustment expenses
incurred in 2001 and all prior years was $102.9 million. During
2002, $54.2 million was paid on claims incurred in 2001 and
prior and the estimate of remaining unpaid reserves as of
December 31, 2002 was $40.3 million. This resulted in a net
reduction of the 2001 estimated reserves of $8.4 million for
losses incurred in 2001 and prior. This change in estimate is a
result of receiving better information on the claims during the
adjustment process, leading to a higher degree of certainty on
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the ultimate loss amount for each claim. The majority of this
change relates to losses incurred in the year 2001. The majority
of our losses are short-tail in nature and adjustments to reserve
amounts occur rather quickly. There were no specific events in
2002 that caused a change in our overall reserve assumptions.
Conditions that affected this change may not necessarily occur
in the future. Accordingly, it may not be appropriate to
extrapolate this redundancy to future periods.

We did not experience any significant change in the number
of claims paid (other than for the growth in our business), average
claims paid or average claim reserve that would be inconsistent
with the types of risks we insured in the respective years. The
number of new claims opened was approximately 116,500 in
2002, 106,000 in 2001 and 93,700 in 2000. The increase in
claims opened correlates to the increase in policies in force for
each period. The average indemnity paid (prior to reinsurance
recoveries) on claims closed was $3,500 in 2002, $3,389 in 2001,
and $3,333 in 2000. The average indemnity is impacted by the
types of losses reported (fire, wind, etc.) during the period.

The number of claims reported but unpaid and the average
reserve (prior to reinsurance recoveries) on these claims each
period was: 2002 - 8,022 claims, $10,015 average reserve;
2001 - 6,353 claims, $11,642 average reserve; and 2000 -
6,882 claims, $9,386 average reserve. The number of claims
and the average reserve for claims reported but unpaid at the
end of each period is heavily impacted by weather events
occurring late in the year which often produce a high number
of small dollar claims. The difference between average
indemnity paid during a year and the average indemnity on
claims reported but unpaid is a result of small dollar claims being
closed more quickly than high dollar, more complicated claims.

The increase in insurance commissions payable since
December 31, 2001 reflect the continued growth in insurance
premiums written. The decrease in other payables and accruals
since December 31, 2001 reflects the timing of annual
incentive payments and other operating costs. .

. Cash flow from the insurance operations is expected to remain
sufficiently positive to meet American Modern's future operating
requirements and to provide for reasonable dividends to Midland.

Transportation

M/G Transport generates its cash inflows primarily from
affreightment revenue. its primary outflows of cash relate to
the payment of barge charter costs, debt service obligations,
operating expenses, income taxes, dividends to Midland and
the acquisition of capital equipment. Cash flow from the
transportation subsidiaries is expected to remain sufficiently
positive to meet future operating requirements.

The transportation subsidiaries entered into a seven-year
lease in 2000 and a fifteen-year lease in 1999 for transportation
equipment. Aggregate rental payments under these two
operating leases over the next twelve years will approximate
$7.5 million. No other transportation equipment was leased or
purchased during 2002. As of December 31, 2002, M/G
Transport operated a fleet of 194 barges, which are either
owned or under a long-term lease arrangement. The average
age of this fleet was approximately 12 years. M/G Transport

also operated 51 barges under short-term rental arrangements
at December 31, 2002. The majority of these short-term
charters may be returned to their respective owners during the
first six months of 2003. M/G Transport has committed to
acquire or lease 30 new barges, which are scheduled for delivery
during the second quarter of 2003 at an approximate total cost
of $7.5 million. This acquisition and any future acquisitions
would likely be financed through a combination of internally
generated funds, external borrowings or lease transactions.

As of December 31, 2002, the transportation subsidiaries had
$0.7 million of collateralized equipment obligations outstanding.
M/G Transport does not own or lease any towing equipment.

OTHER MATTERS

Comprehensive Income

The difference between our net income and comprehensive
income is the net after-tax change in unrealized gains (losses) on
marketable securities, the after-tax change in the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreement and additional minimum liability
required at December 31, 2002 by our defined benefit pension
plans. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 such
changes increased or (decreased), net of related income tax
effects, by the following amounts (amounts in 000's):

2002 2001
Changes in:
Net unrealized capital gains (losses) ~ $ 3,379 $(8,521)
Fair value of interest rate swap hedge  (1,264) —
Additional minimum pension liability (417) —
Total $ 1,698 $(8,521)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, net
unrealized gains in equity securities decreased (net of income
tax effects) by $6.7 million and $12.6 million, respectively.

For fixed income securities, the net unrealized gains increased
by $10.1 million and $4.1 million, respectively, for the same
time periods.

Changes in net unrealized gains on marketable securities
result from both market conditions and realized gains
recognized in a reporting period. Changes in the after-tax fair
value of the interest rate swap agreement are predicated on the
current interest rate environment relative to the fixed rate of
the swap agreement.

Changes in additional minimum pension liability are
actuarially determined based on the funded status of the plans
and current actuarial assumptions.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us
to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, revenues and expenses and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We regularly
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evaluate our critical accounting policies, assumptions and
estimates, including those related to insurance revenue and
expense recognition, loss reserves, reinsurance levels and
valuation and impairment of intangible assets such as goodwill.
We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. This process forms the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies
require significant judgments and estimates in the preparation
of our consolidated financial statements.

Insurance Revenue and Expense Recognition

Premium for physical damage and other property and
casualty related coverages, net of premium ceded to reinsurers,
are recognized as income on a pro-rata basis over the lives of the
policies. Credit accident and health and credit life premium are
recognized as income over the lives of the policies in proportion
to the amount of insurance protection provided. American
Modern does not consider anticipated investment income in
determining premium deficiencies (if any) on short-term
contracts. Policy acquisition costs, primarily commission expenses
and premium taxes, are capitalized and expensed over the terms
of the related policies on the same basis as the related premiums
are earned. Selling and administrative expenses that are not
primarily related to premium written are expensed as incurred.

Reserves for Insurance Losses

American Modern's reserve for insurance losses is based on
past experience of settling known claims as well as estimating
those not yet reported. While management believes the amounts
are fairly stated, the ultimate liability, once fully developed, may
be more than or less than that provided. Management and its
actuaries, both internal and external, regularly review these
liabitities and adjustments are made as necessary in the current
period. Management does not foresee any significant change in
the manner in which it records its reserve for insurance losses.

Reinsurance Risks

By reinsuring certain levels and types of insurable risk with
other insurance companies, American Modern limits its exposure
to losses to that portion of the insurable risk it retains. However,
if the reinsurer fails to honor its obligations, American Modern
could suffer additional losses as the reinsurance contracts do not
relieve American Modern of its obligations to policyholders.
American Modern regularly evaluates the financial condition of
its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to losses from reinsurer
insolvencies. in addition, American Modern may require
reinsurers to establish trust funds and maintain letters of credit
to further minimize American Modern's exposure. We do not
believe there is any significant concentration of credit risk arising
from any single reinsurer. We expect that American Modern's
reinsurers will satisfy their obligations. As of December 31,
2002, American Modern was owed $4.9 million, all of which is
current, from reinsurers for claims that have been paid and for
which a contractual obligation to collect from a reinsurer exists.

Asset Impairment

American Modern invests in various securities including U.S.
Government securities, corporate debt securities, and corporate
stocks. Investment securities in general are exposed to various
risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility. Due
to the level of risk associated with these securities, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the value of investment securities will
occur in the near term and that such changes could be material.
Our management team meets at regular intervals and continually
monitor investments and other assets that have fair values that
are less than carrying amounts for other-than-temporary
impairment. Factors such as the amount and timing of declines in
fair values, the significance of the declines, the length of time
of the declines, duration of fixed-maturity securities, interest
payment defaults, nature of the issuers’ operations, financial
condition and industry factors, among others, are considered
when determining investment impairment. Invested assets and
property and equipment are monitored for impairment, such as
significant decreases in market value of assets, changes in legal
factors or in the business climate, an accumulation of costs in
excess of the amount originally expected to acquire or
construct an asset, or other such factors indicating that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Stock Options

Midland accounts for compensation expense under the
“intrinsic value" based method under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion 25. As such, no compensation cost
has been recognized for the stock option plans. Midland is
currently assessing the voluntary change to the fair value based
approach of accounting for stock based employee compensation
for 2003, but has yet to make a final determination.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Midland maintains defined benefit pension plans for a limitec
number of active participants. The defined benefit pension
plans are not open to employees hired after March 31, 2000.
The pension expense is calculated based upon a number of
actuarial assumptions, including an expected long-term rate of
return and a discount rate. In determining our expected long-term
rate of return and our discount rate, we evaluate input from
our actuaries, asset altocations and long-term bond yields. If
other assumptions were used, the amount recorded as pension
expense would be differ from our current estimate.

Intangible Assets (Goodwill)

As required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142, we ceased amortizing goodwill effective
January 1, 2002. Based on the impairment test required by SFAS
No. 142 in the quarter ended March 31, 2002, a non-recurring
charge of $1.5 million after-tax was taken against income and is
reported as cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
in the income statement. Prior to January 1, 2002, goodwill was
amortized on a straight-line basis over a 10-year period. The
income statements for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000 include an after-tax expense of $0.4 million each year relating
to goodwill amortization. As of December 31, 2002, our remaining
goodwill balance was $2.1 million and is included in Other assets.
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Special Purpose Vehicles or Off Balance Sheet
Business Arrangements

We do not utilize any special purpose financing vehicles or
have any undisclosed off-balance sheet arrangements. Similarly,
we hold no fair value contracts for which a lack of marketplace
quotations would necessitate the use of fair value techniques.

New Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
SFAS 145 “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical
Corrections,” SFAS 146 "Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities,” SFAS 147 “Acquisitions of Certain
Financial Institutions-an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9" and SFAS 148
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123"
during 2002. The adoption of SFAS Nos. 145, 146, 147 did not
have a material impact on Midland's consolidated financial
position or results of operations. Midland provided the
prominent disclosures required by SFAS No. 148 and is
currently assessing the appropriateness of a voluntary change
to the fair value based approach of accounting for stock based
employee compensation for 2003, but has yet to make a final
determination.

During 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
"Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others" and Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities.” These interpretations had no impact on
Midland as the Company had no guarantees, including loan
guarantees such as standby letters of credit, or variable interest
entities at December 31, 2002.

Impact of Inflation
We do not consider the impact of the change in prices due
to inflation to be material in the analysis of our overall operations.

QUANTATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that we will incur investment losses
due to adverse changes in market rates and prices. Our market
risk exposures are substantially related to American Modern’s
investment portfolio and changes in interest rates and equity
prices. Each risk is defined in more detail as follows.

Interest rate risk is the risk that American Modern will incur
economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. The risk
arises from many of American Modern’s investment activities, as
American Modern invests substantial funds in interest-sensitive
assets. American Modern manages the interest rate risk inherent in
its investment assets relative to the interest rate risk inherent in its
liabilities. One of the measures American Modern uses to
quantify this exposure is duration. By definition, duration is a
measure of the sensitivity of the fair value of a fixed income

portfolio to changes in interest rates. Based upon the 3.9 year
duration of American Modern's fixed income portfolio as of
December 31, 2002, management estimates that a 100 basis point
increase in interest rates would decrease the market value of its
$608.7 million fixed income portfolio by 3.9%, or $23.7 million.

Equity price risk is the risk that American Modern will incur
economic losses due to adverse changes in a particular stock or
stock index. American Modern's equity exposure consists
primarily of declines in the value of its equity security holdings. As
of December 31, 2002, American Modern had $136.1 million in
equity holdings, including $49.5 million of U.S. Bancorp common
stock. A 10% decrease in the market value of U.S. Bancorp's
common stock would decrease the fair value of its equity portfolio
by approximately $5.0 million. As of December 31, 2002, the
remainder of American Modern's portfolio of equity securities had
a beta coefficient (a measure of stock price volatility) of 1.08.
This means that, in general, if the S&P 500 Index decreases by
10%, management estimates that the fair value of the
remaining equity portfolio will decrease by 10.8%.

The active management of market risk is integral to
American Modern's operations. American Modern has
investment guidelines that define the overall framework for
managing market and other investment risks, including the
accountabilities and controls over these activities.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS DISCLOSURE

Certain statements made in this report are forward-looking
and are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements
include certain discussions relating to future revenue,
underwriting income, premium volume, investment income and
other investment results, business strategies, profitability,
liquidity, capital adequacy, anticipated capital expenditures and
business relationships, as well as any other statements
concerning the year 2003 and beyond. The forward-looking
statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause
results to differ materially from those anticipated in those
statements. Factors that might cause results to differ from
those anticipated include, without limitation, adverse weather
conditions, changes in underwriting results affected by adverse
economic conditions, fluctuations in the investment markets,
changes in the retail marketplace, changes in the laws or
regulations affecting the operations of the company or its
subsidiaries, changes in the business tactics or strategies of the
company, its subsidiaries or its current or anticipated business
partners, the financial condition of the company's business
partners, acquisitions or divestitures, changes in market forces,
litigation and the other risk factors that have been identified in
the company's filings with the SEC, any one of which might
materially affect the operations of the company or its
subsidiaries. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of
the date made. We undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances
arising after the date on which they are made.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
Insurance:
Premiums earned $577,668 $508,233 $456,120
Net investment income 35,455 33,802 30,774
Net realized investment gains (losses) (6,900) 2,023 4,646
Other insurance income 6,674 7,175 8,784
Transportation 23,285 34,826 33,119
Other 508 484 979
Total 636,690 586,543 534,422
Costs and Expenses:
Insurance:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 341,015 292,188 240,680
Commissions and other policy acquisition costs 169,477 145,777 137,053
Operating and administrative expenses 73,459 73,322 70,755
Transportation operating expenses 22,641 32,898 28,828
Interest expense 3,849 4,368 4,132
Other operating and administrative expenses 508 1,286 2,305
Total 610,949 549,839 483,753
Income Before Federal Income Tax and Cumulative Effect
of Change in Accounting Principle 25,741 36,704 50,669
Provision for Federal Income Tax 5,437 9,482 15,206
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle 20,304 27,222 35,463
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
(Net of tax benefit of $787) (1,463) — —
Net Income $ 18,841 $ 27,222 $ 35,463
Basic Earnings (Losses) Per Share of Common Stock:
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle $ 117 $ 158 $§ 196
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (0.08) — —
Total $ 1.09 $ 1.58 3 1.96
Diluted Earnings (Losses) Per Share of Common Stock:
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle £ 114 $ 1.5 $ 1.89
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (0.08) — —
Total $ 1.06 $ 151 $ 1.89

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2002 2001
ASSETS
Marketable Securities:
Fixed income (cost, $572,768 in 2002 and $542,563 in 2001) $ 600,920 $ 555,159
Equity (cost, $91,239in 2002 and $91,191 in 2001) 138,838 148,850
Total 739,758 704,009
Cash 5,975 11,286
Accounts Receivable—Net 91,633 88,108
Reinsurance Recoverables and Prepaid Reinsurance Premiums 76,626 69,795
Property, Plant and Equipment—Net 61,510 59,095
Deferred Insurance Policy Acquisition Costs 96,396 100,785
Other Assets 18,776 20,864
Total Assets $1,090,674 $1,053,942
LIABILITIES AND SHARERKOLDERS' EQUITY
Unearned Insurance Premiums $ 406,311 $ 403,855
Insurance Loss Reserves 164,717 148,674
Insurance Commissions Payable 30,654 26,887
Funds Held Under Reinsurance Agreements and Reinsurance Payables 2,977 6,297
Long-Term Debt 47,163 48,619
Other Notes Payable:
Banks 39,000 26,000
Commercial paper 4,238 9,522
Total 43,238 35,522
Deferred Federal income Tax 35,642 31,803
Other Payables and Accruals 51,064 60,409
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15) — —
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common stock (issued and outstanding: 17,566 shares at December 31, 2002
and 17,660 shares at December 31, 2001 after deducting treasury stock
of 4,290 shares and 4,196 shares, respectively) 911 911
Additional paid-in capital 22,516 20,386
Retained earnings 279,826 264,057
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 47,573 45,875
Treasury stock (at cost) (41,605) (38,698)
Unvested restricted stock awards (313) (655)
Total 308,08 291,876
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $1,090,674 $1,053,942

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Amounts in thousands) Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Accumulated Unvested
Additional Other Compre- Restricted Compre-
Common  Paid-In Retained hensive Treasury Stock hensive
Stock Capital Eamnings Income Stock Awards Total Income
Balance, December 31, 1999 $911  $18583  $207,005 349388  $(15,786) $(2,099) $258,002
Comprehensive income:
Net income 35,463 35463  $35462
increase in unrealized gain on
marketable securities, net of
related income tax effect of $2,661 5,008 5,008 5,008
Total comprehensive income $40471
Purchase of treasury stock (15,432) (15,432)
Issuance of treasury stock
for options exercised and
other employee benefit plans 109 : 959 1,068
Cash dividends declared (2,789) (2,789)
Federal income tax benefit related to the
exercise or granting of stock awards 479 479
Revaluation of stock options
relating to an award modification 776 776
Amortization and cancellation of
unvested restricted stock awards (109) (145) 856 602
Balance, December 34, 2000 911 19,838 239,679 54,396 (30,404)  (1,243) 283,177
Comprehensive income:
Net income 27,222 27222  $27,222
Decrease in unrealized gain on
marketable securities, net of
related income tax effect of $4,860 (8,521) (8521) _ (8521
Total comprehensive income $18,707
Purchase of treasury stock (10,900) (10,900)
Issuance of treasury stock
for options exercised and
other employee benefit plans (292) 2,625 2,333
Cash dividends declared (2,844) (2,844)
Federal income tax benefit related to the
exercise or granting of stock awards 861 861
Amortization and cancellation of
unvested restricted stock awards 21) (19) 588 548
Balance, December 31, 2001 11 20,386 264,057 45,875 (38,698) (655) 291,876
Comprehensive income:
Net income 18,841 18,841 $18,84"
Increase in unrealized gain on
marketable securities, net of
related income tax effect of $2,117 3,379 3,379 3,379
Cther, net of federal income
tax of $306 (1,681) (1,681) (1,681)
Total comprehensive income _$20,539
Purchase of treasury stock (2,893) (3,893)
Issuance of treasury stock
for options exercised and
other employee benefit plans 627 1,049 1,676
Cash dividends declared (3,072) (3,072)
Federal income tax benefit related to the
exercise or granting of stock awards 1,570 1,570
Amortization and cancellation of
unvested restricted stock awards (67) (63) 342 212
Balance, December 31, 2002 $211  $22,516 $279,826 $47,573 $(41,605) $ (313) $308,908
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 18,841 $ 27,222 $ 35,463
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 8,307 8,324 9,151
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for goodwill 2,250 — —
Provision for deferred federal income tax 2,828 3,526 2,105
Net realized losses (gains) from sale of investments 6,680 (915) (4,646)
Increase in insurance loss reserves 16,043 12,787 2,174
increase {decrease) in other accounts payable and accruals (9,778) (13,391) 13,375
Increase in reinsurance recoverables and prepaid reinsurance premiums (6,831) (23,765) (2,879)
Decrease (increase) in deferred insurance policy acquisition costs 4,389 (2.211) (6,406)
Increase in insurance commissions payable 3,767 4,706 1,890
Increase in net accounts receivable (3,525) (17,712) (9,861)
Increase (decrease) in funds held under reinsurance
agreements and reinsurance payables (3,320) 3,494 (294)
Increase in unearned insurance premiums 2,456 46,670 44,347
Decrease (increase) in other assets (805) 6,372 (9,919)
Other-—net 1,236 166 (1,626)
Net cash provided by operating activities 42,538 48,273 72,874
Cash Flows from investing Activities:
Purchase of marketable securities (305,731) (268,283) (258,485)
Sale of marketable securities 243,363 181,999 167,923
Maturity of marketable securities 58,772 38,549 45,316
Decrease (increase) in cash equivalent marketable securities (34,774) 24,091 (24,051)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (10,667) (9,735) (3.833)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 159 290 2,924
Net cash paid in business acquisitions — — (2,471)
Net cash used in investing activities (48,878) (33,089) (72,677)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Increase {decrease) in net short-term borrowings 7,716 (9,498} 19,470
Purchase of treasury stock (3,893) (10,900) (15,432)
Dividends paid (3,014) (2,818) (2.747)
Issuance of treasury stock 1,676 2,333 1,068
Repayment of long-term debt (1,456) (1,406) (4,263)
Issuance of long-term debt — 10,000 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,029 (12,289) (1,904)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (5,311) 2,895 (1,707)
Cash at Beginning of Year 11,286 8,391 10,098
Cash at End of Year $ 5975 $ 11,286 $ 8,391
interest Paid $ 3,852 $ 4,178 $ 4,200
Income Taxes Paid $ 6,700 $ 4,000 $ 12,457

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company operates generally in two industries—
insurance and transportation with the most significant business
activities being in insurance.

The accounting policies of the Company and its
subsidiaries conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to use numerous estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements include estimates for items
such as insurance loss reserves, income taxes, various other
liability accounts and deferred insurance policy acquisition
costs. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Policies
that affect the more significant elements of the consolidated
financial statements are summarized below.

Principles of Censolidation—The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and all
subsidiary companies. Material intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated. Share information has been
adjusted for a 2 for 1 stock split effective July 17, 2002. Certain
prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current
year presentation.

Marketable Securities—Marketable securities are
categorized as fixed income securities (cash equivalents, debt
instruments and preferred stocks having scheduled redemption
provisions) and equity securities (common, convertible and
preferred stocks which do not have redemption provisions).

The Company classifies all fixed income and equity securities as
available-for-sale and carries such investments at market value.
Unrealized gains or losses on investments, net of related income
taxes, are included in shareholders’ equity as an item of
accumulated other comprehensive income. Realized gains and
losses on sales of investments are recognized in income on a
specific identification basis. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
the market value of the Company's investment portfolio includes
approximately $40.5 million and $35.8 million, respectively,

of convertible securities, some of which contain embedded
derivatives. The embedded derivatives are valued separately
and the change in market value of the embedded derivatives

is included in net realized investment gains and losses on the
Consolidated Statements of Income beginning in 2001.

Available-for-sale securities are reviewed quarterly for
possible other-than-temporary impairment. The review includes
an analysis of the facts and circumstances of each individual
investment such as the length of time the fair value has been
below cost, the expectation for that security's performance, the
credit worthiness of the issuer and the Company's intent to sell

or its ability to hold the security to maturity. A decline in value
that is considered to be other-than-temporary is recorded as a
loss within Net Realized Investment Loss in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Property and Depreciation—Property, plant and
equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization
are generally calculated over the estimated useful lives of the
respective properties (buildings and equipment — 15 to 35 years,
furniture and equipment — 3 to 7 years, and barges - 20 years).
Depreciation expense recorded in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
(amounts in 000's): $8,093, $7,223 and $ $7,996, respectively.

The Company is in the process of developing an information
technology system for its insurance operations. The system is
known as modernLINK and its development began in 2000 and
will continue over the next several years. All directly related costs
associated with this system are capitalized. As components of the
system are implemented and placed into service, depreciation
commences using the straight-line method of depreciation over
a four-year period. As of December 31, 2002, the unamortized
balance of modernLINK's software development costs was
$8.2 million.

Federal income Tax—Deferred federal income taxes are
recognized to reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for federal
income tax purposes. The Company continually reviews deferred
tax assets to determine the necessity of a valuation allowance.

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax
return which includes all subsidiaries.

Insurance lncome—Premiums for physical damage and other
property and casualty related coverages, net of premiums ceded
to reinsurers, are recognized as income on a pro-rata basis over
the lives of the policies. Credit accident and health and credit life
premiums are recognized as income over the lives of the policies
in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided.
The Company does not consider anticipated investment income
in determining premium deficiencies (if any) on short-term
contracts. Policy acquisition costs, primarily commission expenses
and premium taxes, are capitalized and expensed over the terms
of the related policies on the same basis as the related premiums
are earned. Selling and administrative expenses that are not
primarily related to premiums written are expensed as incurred.

Insurance Loss Reserves—Unpaid insurance losses and
loss adjustment expenses include an amount determined from
reports on individual cases and an amount, based on past
experience, for losses incurred but not reported. Such liabilities
are necessarily based on estimates and, while management
believes that the amounts are fairly stated, the ultimate liability
may be in excess of or less than the amounts provided. The
methods of making such estimates and for establishing the
resulting liabilities are continually reviewed and any
adjustments resulting therefrom are included in earnings
currently. Insurance loss reserves also include an amount for
claim drafts issued but not yet paid.
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Allowance for Losses—Provisions for losses on receivables
are made in amounts deemed necessary to maintain adequate
reserves to cover probable future losses.

Reinsurance—The Company reinsures certain levels of risk
with other insurance companies and cedes varying portions of its
written premiums to such reinsurers. Failure of reinsurers to
honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company as
reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its
obligations to policyholders. The Company evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations
of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or
economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimize its
exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. In
addition, the Company pays a percentage of earned premiums
to reinsurers in return for coverage against catastrophic losses.
The Company also assumes a limited amount of business on
certain reinsurance contracts. Related premiums and loss reserves
are recorded based on records supplied by the ceding companies.

Transportation Revenues—Revenues for river transportation
activities are recognized when earned. If freight services are
in process at the end of a reporting period, an allocation of
revenue between reporting periods is made based on relative
transit time in each reporting period with expenses recognized
as incurred.

Statements of Cash Flows—For purposes of the
statements of cash flows, the Company defines cash as cash
held in operating accounts at financial institutions. The
amounts reported in the statements of cash flows for the
purchase, sale or maturity of marketable securities do not
include cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The carrying values of
cash, receivables, short-term notes payable, trade accounts
payable and any financial instruments included in other assets
and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values principally
because of the short-term maturities of these instruments.
Generally, the fair value of investments, including embedded
derivatives, is considered to be the market value which is based
on quoted market prices. The fair value of long-term debt is
estimated using interest rates that are currently available to the
Company for issuance of debt with similar terms and maturities.

Derivative Instruments—The Company accounts for its
derivatives under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(“SFAS") 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended. The standard requires
recognition of all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet and requires measurement of those instruments at
fair value through adjustments to either accumulated other

comprehensive income or current earnings or both, as
appropriate. During 2002, the Company entered into a series of
interest rate swaps to convert $30 million of floating rate debt
to a fixed rate. The interest rate swaps were designated as a
cash flow hedge and were deemed to be 100% effective. Thus,
the changes in the fair value of the swap agreements are
recorded as a separate component of shareholders’ equity and
have no impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income. At
December 31, 2002, $1.3 million in deferred losses, net of tax,
related to this hedge were recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. The Company has recorded the fair
value of the interest rate swaps at December 31, 2002 of

$1.9 million in Other Payables and Accruals. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, there were no cash flow hedges that were
discontinued related to forecasted transactions deemed not
probable of occurring.

Stock Option and Award Plans—Midland has various
plans which provide for granting options and common stock to
certain employees and independent directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The Company accounts for compensation
expense related to such transactions using the “intrinsic value”
based method under the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25 and its related interpretations.
Midland's equity compensation plans are described
more fully in Note 13.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—
an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123," to provide
alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to
the fair value based method of accounting for stock based
compensation and to require prominent disclosures about the
method of accounting for stock based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. Midland
is currently assessing the voluntary change to the fair value based
approach of accounting for stock based employee compensation
for 2003, but has yet to make a final determination.

The fair values of the 2002, 2001 and 2000 option grants
were estimated on the date of the grant using the Black Scholes
option-pricing madel with the following (weighted average)
assumptions:

2002 2001 2000
Fair value of options granted ~ $ 7.48 $ 569 $ 436
Dividend yield 1.2% 1.3% 13%
Expected volatility 22.1% 27.6% 27.1%
Risk free interest rate 4.9% 4.8% 6.7%
Expected life (in years) -7 7 7
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

As Midland accounts for stock options using the “intrinsic
value”, no compensation cost has been recognized for the
stock option plans. Had the Company accounted for all stock
based employee compensation under the fair value method
(SFAS 123), the Company's 2002, 2001 and 2000 net income
and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts indicated below (amounts in 000's, except per
share data):

2002 2001 2000

Net Income as Reported $18,841 $27,222 $35,463
Deduct: Total stock-based
employee compensation
determined under fair value
based method for all awards, .
net of related tax effects 700 515 306
Proforma Net Income $18,141 $26,707  $35,157
Earnings Per Share

Basic Shares 17,323 17,282 18,132

Diluted Shares 17,789 17,991 18,758
Earnings per share

Basic—as reported $ 109 $ 158 $ 196

Basic—proforma 1.05 1.55 1.94

Diluted—as reported $ 106 §$ 151 3 189
Diluted—proforma 1.02 1.48 1.87

Compensation expense in the pro-forma disclosure is not
indicative of future amounts as options vest over several years
and additional grants are generally made each year.

New Accounting Standards—In addition to SFAS No. 148,
the FASB issued SFAS No. 145 “Rescission of FASB Statements
No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and
Technical Corrections,"” SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” and SFAS No. 147
“Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions—an amendment
of FASB Statements No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation
No. 9" during 2002. The adoption of SFAS Nos. 145, 146, 147
did not have a material impact on Midland's consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

During 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others" and Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities.” These interpretations had no impact on
Midland as the Company had no guarantees, including loan
guarantees such as standby letters of credit, or variable interest
entities at December 31, 2002.

2. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Thousands of Dollars

Gross Unrealized Market
2002 Cost Gains Losses Value
Debt Securities:
Governments $105,208 $ 6,146 $ 38 $111,316
Municipals 162,923 11,214 10 174,127
Corporates 216,493 13,717 2,877 227,333
Cash Equivalents 73,338 — — 73,338
Other—Notes
Receivable 7,638 —_ —_ 7,639
Accrued
Interest 7,167 — — 7167
Total 572,768 31,077 2,925 600,920
Equity Securities 82,616 58,182 10,583 137,245
Embedded Derivatives 888 — — 888
Accrued Dividends 735 — — 735
Total 91,239 58,182 10,583 138,838
Total Marketable
Securities $664,007 $89,259 $13,508 $739,758
Thousands of Dollars
Gross Unrealized Market
2001 Cost Gains Losses Value
Debt Securities:
Governments $134219 $ 5154 § 231 $139,142
Municipals 183,645 4,712 524 187,833
Corporates 170,429 6,327 2,842 173,914
Cash Equivalents 38,569 — — 38,569
Other—Notes
Receivable 8,131 — — 8,137
Accrued
Interest 7,570 _ — 7,570
Total 542563 16,193 3,597 555,15%
Equity Securities 89,483 61,193 3,534 147,142
Embedded Derivatives 1,108 — — 1,108
Accrued Dividends 600 — — 600
Total 91,191 61,193 3,534 148,850
Total Marketable
Securities $633,754 $77,386 $7,131 $704,009

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the market value of the
Company's investment in the common stock of US Bancorp, which
exceeded 10% of the Company's shareholders’ equity, was
$52.2 million and $51.5 million, respectively.
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The following is investment information summarized by
investment category (amounts in 000's):

2002 2001 . 2000
Investment Income:
Insurance:
Interest on Fixed
Income Securities $30,928 $30,782 $28513
Dividends on
Equity Securities 5,982 4,564 3,383
Investment Expense (1,455) (1,544) (1,122)
Net Insurance
Investment Income 35,455 33,802 30,774
Other Investment Income 134 193 231
Total Investment Income $ 35,589 $33995 $31,005

Net Realized
Investment Gains:
Fixed Income:

Gross Realized Gains $ 6,333 § 2358 § 539

Gross Realized Losses  (7,659) (1,687) (3,800)
Equity Securities:
Gross Realized Gains 3,414 15,083 16,197
Gross Realized Losses  (8,288)  (13,731) (8,290)
Net Realized Investment
Gains (Losses) $ (6,900) $ 2,023 $ 4,646
Change in Unrealized
Investment Gains:
Fixed income $15,556 § 6,297 $15,019
Equity Securities (10,080) (19,678) (7,350)
Change in Unrealized
Investment Gains $ 549 $(13,381) § 7,669

Other Investment Income is included in Other on the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Income.

Included in Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for 2002
and 2001 is the change in the fair value of embedded derivative
options of (amounts in 000's) $(220) and $1,108, respectively. In
addition, Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for 2002
include an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $(4,639).
There were no material impairment charges in 2001 or 2000.

The cost and approximate market value of debt securities held
at December 31, 2002, summarized by contractual maturities, are
shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities when there exists a right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties (amounts in 000's).

Market

Cost Value
One year or less $105,912  $106,207
After one year through five years 145,053 153,728
After five years through ten years 194,871 207,347
After 10 years 126,932 133,568
Total $572,768 $600,920

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE—NET

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are
generally due within one year and consist of the following
(amounts in 000's):

2002 2001
Insurance $79,666 $82,682
Transportation 3,218 3,965
Other 2,575 2,287
Total 92,459 88,934
Less Allowance for Losses 826 826
Accounts Receivable—Net $21,633 $88,108

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had
outstanding receivables from its largest customer, Conseco,
Inc., of $11.1 million and $20.7 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, all amounts owed from Conseco
were current.

Other receivables include a federal income tax receivable
of $5.7 million at December 31, 2002.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT—NET

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, property, plant and
equipment stated at original cost consist of the following
(amounts in 000's):

2002 2001
Land $ 1,341 $ 1,341
Buildings, Improvements,
Fixtures, etc. 72,737 68,503
Transportation Equipment 39,992 42,281
Software Development 9,879 3,548

Total 123,949 115,673
Less Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization 62,439 56,578
Property, Plant and
Equipment—Net $ 61,510 $ 59,095

Total rent expense related to the rental of equipment included
in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income is
{amounts in 000's) $5,839 in 2002, $6,589 in 2001 and $7,219 in
2000. Future rentals under non-cancelable operating leases are
approximately (amounts in 000's): $1,266 — 2003; $834 - 2004;
$718 - 2005; $718 — 2006, $631 — 2007 and $4,124 - thereafter.

The Company has committed to acquire 30 new barges in
2003 at an approximate total cost of $7.5 million.
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5. DEFERRED INSURANCE POLICY
ACQUISITION COSTS
Acquisition costs incurred and capitalized during 2002,
2001 and 2000 amounted to $165.1 million, $155.0 million
and $143.5 million, respectively. Amortization of deferred
acquisition costs was $169.5 million, $145.8 million and
$137.1 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

6. GOODWILL

On January 1, 2002 Midland adopted SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 changed
the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to the
impairment approach. Upon the adoption of the statement,
Midland ceased amortizing goodwill, including goodwill recorded
from past business combinations. As a result of the initial
impairment test, Midland recorded an impairment charge of
$(1.5) million, net of tax of $787,000, or $(0.08) per share
(diluted), in its Other insurance segment in the first quarter of
2002. This charge is reported separately in the income statement as
a Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle. The fair
value of that reporting unit was estimated using the expected
present value of future cash flows. There were no additional
impairment charges incurred in 2002. As of December 31, 2002,
the remaining goodwill balance, all of which is attributable to the
Other Insurance segment, was $2.1 million and is included in Other
Assets.

lllustrated below is what reported net income would have
been exclusive of amortization expense related to goodwill had
the standard been adopted effective January 1, 2000 (amounts
in 000's except per share data):

2002 2001 2000

Reported net income $18,841 $27,222 $35,463
Add back goodwill

amortization, net of tax —_ 383 383
Adjusted net income $18,841 $27,605 $35,846
Basic earnings per share:

Reported net income $1.09 $1.58 $1.96

Goodwill amortization — 0.02 0.02
Adjusted earnings per share $1.09 $1.60 $1.98
Diluted earnings per share:

Reported net income $1.06 $1.51 $1.89

Goodwill amortization — 0.02 0.02
Adjusted earnings per share $1.06 $1.53 $1.91

The Company has no other intangible assets subject to the
provisions of SFAS No. 142.

7. NOTES PAYABLE TO BANKS

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had
conventional lines of credit with commercial banks of
$69 million and $48 million, respectively. The lines of credit in
use under these agreements at December 31, 2002 and 2001
amounted to $39 miltion and $26 million, respectively.
Borrowings under these lines of credit constitute senior debt.
Annual commitment fees of $71,000 are currently paid to the
lending institutions to maintain these credit agreements.

The aforementioned notes payable, together with outstanding
commercial paper, had weighted average interest rates of 1.97%
and 2.35% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

8. LoNG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is
summarized as follows (amounts in 000's):

2002 2001

Equipment Obligations, Due Through—

6.50% October 31, 2003 $ 700 $ 1,400
Mortgage Notes, Due Through—
6.83% December 20, 2005 16,463 17,219
Unsecured Notes Under a
$60 million Credit Facility—
*557% December 1, 2005 30,000 30,000
Total Obligations 47,163 48,619
Current Maturities 1,510 1,455

Non Current Portion $45,653 $47,163

*In 2002, an interest rate swap agreement was entered into with a
consortium of three banks. This agreement fixed the interest rate in this
credit facility at the above rate for the term of the agreement. The fair
value of this agreement as of December 31, 2002 was $(1.9) million
and is included in Other Payables and accruals.

Equipment and real estate obligations are collateralized by
transportation equipment and real estate with a net book value
of $24,976 at December 31, 2002.

The aggregate amount of repayment requirements on
long-term debt for the five years subsequent to 2002 are
(amounts in 000's): 2003 - $1,510; 2004 - $865;

2005 — remainder of $44,788.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the carrying value of th:
Company's long-term debt (including the interest rate swap)
approximated its fair value.
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9. FEDERAL INCOME TAX
The provision for federal income tax is summarized as
follows (amounts in 000's):

2002 2001 2000

Current provision $2,609 $5,956  $13,101
Deferred provision 2,828 3,526 2,105

Total $5,437 $9,482  $15206

The federal income tax provision for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is different from amounts
derived by applying the statutory tax rates to income before
federal income tax as follows (amounts in 000's):

2002 2001 2000

Federal income tax at
statutory rate
Tax effect of:

Tax exempt interest
and excludable
dividend income

Excise tax on reversion
of pension assets —_ — 529

Other—net 353 308 340

Provision for
federal income tax

$ 9,009 $12,846 $17,734

(3,925) (3,672) (3,397)

$ 5437 $ 9482 315206

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred
federal income tax liability are summarized as follows
(amounts in 000's):

2002 2001
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred insurance policy
acquisition costs $30,851 $31,923
Unrealized gain on
marketable securities 25,590 24,579
Accelerated depreciation 8,596 7,543
Other 3,808 2,376
Sub-total 68,845 66,421
Deferred tax assets:
Unearned insurance premiums 23,661 24,519
Pension expense 579 1,618
Insurance loss reserves 3,915 3,326
Other 5,048 5,155
Sub-total 33,203 34,618
Deferred federal income tax $35,642 $31,803

For 2002, 2001 and 2000, (amounts in 000's) $1,570,
$861 and $479, respectively, of income tax benefits applicable
to deductible compensation related to stock options exercised
were credited to shareholders' equity.

10. REINSURANCE
A reconciliation of direct to net premiums, on both a
written and an earned basis, is as follows (amount in 000's):

Written Premium
Life & Other Total

$ 40,368  $565,556
2,404 69,465
(30,949} (61,683)

$ 11,823 $573,338

2002 P&C

Direct $525,188
Assumed 67,061
Ceded (30,734)

Net $561,515

Earned Premium
p&cC Life & Other Total

$516,532 $ 31,245 $547,777
82,362 616 82,978
(33,218) (19,869} (53,087)

$565,676  $ 11,992 $577,668

Written Premium
Life & Other Total

$ 37171 $510,160
4,025 88,889
(25,313) (60,061)

$ 15,883  $538,988

2001 P&C

Direct $472,989
Assumed 84,864
Ceded (34,748)

Net $523,105

Earned Premium

2001 P&C Life & Other Total
Direct $455,253 $ 23,968 $479,221
Assumed 70,428 1,150 71,578
Ceded (28,462) (14,104) (42,566)
Net $497,219 $ 11,014 $508,233
Written Premium
2000 P&C Life & Other Total
Direct $455,951 $ 34,006 $489 957
Assumed 47,154 3,609 50,763
Ceded (31,769) (21,199) (52,968)
Net $471,336 $ 16,416 $487,752
Earned Premium
2000 P&C Life & Other Total
Direct $434,565 $ 20,694 $455 259
Assumed 41,700 1,330 43,030
Ceded (30,766) (11,403) (42,169)
Net $445,499 $ 10,621 $456,120

The amounts of recoveries pertaining to property and
casualty reinsurance contracts that were deducted from losses
incurred during 2002, 2001 and 2000 were (amounts in 000's):
$10,317, $16,146 and $14,286, respectively.
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11. INSURANCE Loss RESERVES
Activity in the liability for unpaid insurance losses and loss
adjustment expenses (excluding claim checks issued but not yet
paid) for the property and casualty companies is summarized as
follows (amounts in 000's):
2002 2001 2000

$122,167 $111,742 $113,439

Balance at January 1
Less reinsurance

recoverables 19,308 16,720 24,114

Net balance

at January 1 102,858 95,022 89,325
Incurred related to:

Current year 343,600 291,502 242,689

Prior years (8,371) (4,179) (6,952)
Total incurred 335,229 287,323 235,737
Paid related to:

Current year 268,343 226,853 186,498

Prior years 54,160 52,634 43,542
Total paid 322,503 279,487 230,040
Net balance at

December 31 115,584 102,858 95,022

Plus reinsurance

recoverables 16,119 19,309 16,720
Balance at December 31 $131,703 $122,167 $111,742
2002 2001 2000

Property and Casualty

Gross Loss Reserves $131,703 $122,167 $111,742
Life and Other

Gross Loss Reserves 11,214 7,658 6,070
Outstanding Checks

and Drafts 21,800 18,849 18,075

Consolidated Gross

Loss Reserves $164,717 $148,674 $135,887

Loss reserves, net of reinsurance, for Life and Other
totaled $5.0 million, $4.2 million and $2.9 million at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively.

12. BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a qualified defined benefit pension plan
which provides for the payment of annual benefits to
participants upon retirement. Such benefits are based on years
of service and the participant's highest compensation during five
consecutive years of employment. The Company's funding
policy is to contribute annually an amount sufficient to satisfy
ERISA funding standards. Contributions are intended to provide
not only for benefits attributed to service to date but also for
benefits expected to be earned in the future. During 2000, the
participants of the qualified pension plan were given a one-time

election to opt out of the qualified pension plan and enroll in a
qualified self-directed defined contribution retirement plan. As a
result, the Company recorded a curtailment/settlement gain of
approximately $7.4 million, which is included in Other
Operating and Administrative Expenses in the year 2000. All
new employees are automatically enrolled in the qualified
self-directed defined contribution retirement plan. The
Company contributed $1.8 million, $1.6 million and $1.2 million
to the qualified self-directed retirement plan for the years 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company has a qualified 401 (k) savings plan and a
funded non-qualified savings plan. The Company contributed
(amounts in 000's) $908, $876 and $821 to the qualified 401(k)
savings plan and $182, $225 and $293 to the non-qualified
savings plan for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company also has an unfunded non-qualified defined
benefit pension plan.

The following tables, which include amounts related to
both the qualified and non-qualified pension plans, illustrate
(1) a reconciliation of the plans' benefit obligation, assets and
funded status, (2) the weighted average assumptions used and
(3) the components of the net periodic benefit cost (amounts in
000's except for percentages):

2002 2001
Qualified plan
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year  $ 17,701 $ 15,608

Service cost 663 5¢1

Interest cost 1,349 1,216
Actuarial loss 1,833 9M
Plan amendments 83 —
Benefits paid (727) (705)
Benefit obligation at end of year

{accumulated benefit obligation of

$17,167 and $15,115, respectively)  $20,902 $ 17,701
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets

at beginning of year $15,245 $16,703
Actual return on plan assets (1,580) (753)
Employer contributions (reversion) 3,566 —
Benefits paid (727) (705)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ~ $ 16,504  $ 15,245

Funded status:

Funded status at end of year § (4,398) $ (2,456)

Unrecognized net actuarial (gain)/loss 4,520 (396)
Unrecognized prior service cost 387 334
Unrecognized net transition

obligation (asset) (167) (263)
Prepaid benefit cost (obligation) $ 342 § (2781
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Qualified plan (continued)

Amounts recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets
consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost

Accrued benefit cost

Additional minimum liability

Intangible asset

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Net amount recognized at end of year

Non-qualified plan

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Plan amendments

Settlements

Gross benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year
(accumulated benefit obligation
of $288 and $133, respectively)

Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

Accrued benefit cost

Amounts recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets
consist of:

Accrued benefit cost

Additional minimum liability

Intangible asset

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Net amount recognized at end of year

2002 2001
$ 342 § —
— (2,781)
(1,005) —
387 —
618 —
$ 342 % (2,781)
2002 2001
$ 188 § 1,078
51 18
45 13
542 (71)
(83) —
— (813)
(7) (37)
$ 736 § 188
$ (736) § (188)
472 (40)
8 92
$ (256) $ (136)
$ (256) $ (136)
(32) —
8 —_
24 —
$ (256) § (136)

2002 2001 2000

Qualified and

non-qualified plans
Weighted-average assumptions

as of December 31:
Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets 9.40% 9.40% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase  4.25% 4.25% 4.25%
Components of net

periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 714 $ 609 § 972
“Interest cost 1.395 1,229 2,066
Expected return on assets (1,503) (1,244) (2.266)
Amortization of:

Transition asset (96) 95) (113)

Prior service cost 31 32 55

Actuarial (gain)/loss 30 — (107)
Net periodic benefit cost 571 531 607
Curtailment credit — — (4,333)
Settlement credit — (813) (3,063)
Total net periodic

benefit cost (credit) $ 571  $ (282) $(6,789)

As a result of the reduction in the discount rate used from
7.25% to 6.75%, the Company recorded an additional minimum
pension liability of $1.0 million as of December 31, 2002. Related
to this adjustment, the Company recorded a decrease to other
comprehensive income of $417,000, net of taxes of $225,000.

13. Stock OPrTIONS AND AWARD PLANS

Midland’s equity compensation plans include plans for
restricted stock, performance shares and non-qualified stock options.

The Company implemented a restricted stock award program
during 1993. Under this program, restricted grants of the Company's
common stock will vest after a five-year incentive period, conditioned
upon the recipient’s employment throughout the period. During
the vesting period, shares issued are nontransferable, but the
shares are entitled to all of the other rights of outstanding
shares. In 2002, 325,000 shares were distributed under this
program relating to the 1997 grant. At December 31, 2002,
203,000 restricted stock awards are outstanding which relate
to the 1999 grant. The value of the awards is being charged
to compensation expense over a five-year vesting period.
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in 2000, the Company established a performance stock
award program. Under this program, shares vest after a three-year
performance measurement periods and will only be awarded if
pre-established performance levels have been achieved. Shares are
awarded at no cost and the recipient must have been employed
throughout the entire three-year performance period. A maximum
of 88,000 shares, 89,000 shares and 72,000 shares could
potentially be issued under this program in 2003, 2004 and
2005 respectively. The expected value of these awards is
charged to compensation expense over the performance period.

Under the Company's stock option plans, all of the
outstanding stock options at December 31, 2002 were
non-qualified options and had an exercise price of not less than
100% of the fair market value of the common stock on the
date of grant. Of these stock options, 417,000 were exercisable
at December 31, 2002, 160,000 options become exercisable
each year in 2003 and 2004, 94,000 options become
exercisable in 2005 and 45,000 options become exercisable
in 2006. A summary of stock option transactions follows:

2002 2001 2000
Wid. Wid. Witd.
Avg. Avg. Avg.

(000's) Option (000's) Option {(000's) Option
Shares  Price Shares  Price Shares  Price

Outstanding,

beginning

of year 747 $12.83 766 $ 878 492 § 625
Exercised (52) 10.24 (262) 4.72 (78) 4.50
Forfeited (46) 16.65 (23) 13.85 (14) 1138
Granted 228 2078 266 1660 366 1138
Outstanding,

end of year 877 $14.85 747 $12.83 766 $ 878
Exercisable,

end of year 417 $12.76 312 $11.24 458 §$ 7.03

Information regarding such outstanding options at
December 31, 2002 follows:

Outstanding

Remaining Options
Life (000's) Price
Less than one year 18 $ 836
Two year 18 8.46
Four years 28 6.32
Six years 60 13.05
Seven years 310 11.38
Eight years 234 16.59
Nine years 209 20.78
Total outstanding 877
Weighted average price $14.85

At December 31, 2002, options exercisable have exercise
prices between $6.32 and $20.78 and an average contractual
life of approximately 6 years.

At December 31, 2002, 1,122,000 common shares are
authorized for future option award or stock grants.

In 2000, the Company modified certain individual stock
option awards to extend the life of previously issued stock
options beyond the then stipulated 90-day holding period
subsequent to retirement. The modification did not change the
original strike price; however it required a revaluation of the
options resulting in additional compensation expense based on
the difference between the original intrinsic value and the
intrinsic value on the date of the modification. The impact was
a charge to earnings of $.5 million on an after-tax basis.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table is a reconciliation of the number of
shares used to compute Basic and Diluted earnings per share.
Share information has been adjusted for a 2 for 1 stock split
effective July 17, 2002. No adjustments are necessary to the
income used in the Basic or Diluted calculations for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 or 2000.

Shares in 000's

2002 2001 2000

Shares used in basic

EPS calculation

(shares outstanding) 17,323 17,282 18,132
Effect of dilutive

stock options 252 229 228
Effect of dilutive

restricted stock grants 147 384 348
Effect of dilutive

performance stock awards 67 96 50
Shares used in diluted

EPS calculation 17,789 17,991 18,758

At December 31, 2000, 60,000 stock options at a price of
$13.05 were outstanding and were not comprehended in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because their price was
greater than the average market value of the common stock.

15. CONTINGENCIES

Various litigation and claims against the Company and its
subsidiaries are in process and pending. Based upon a review of
open matters with legal counsel, Management believes that the
outcome of such matters will not have a material effect upon
the Company's consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. The Company also has credit
exposure with customers, generally in the form of premiums
receivable. Management monitors these exposures on a regular
basis. However, as collectibility of such receivables is dependent
upon the financial stability of the customers, the Company
cannot assure collections in full. Where appropriate, the
Company has provided a reserve for such exposures.

Conseco Agency, Inc., American Modern's largest customer,
filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy on January 31, 2003, following the
Chapter 11 filing of its’ parent company on December 18, 2002.
The Conseco Agency receivable of $11.1 million is current at
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December 31, 2002. While the Company anticipates collection of
the entire amount that is owed, it is possible that the Company
might not collect the full amount. If that happened, it could
negatively impact the Company's financial condition and results.

The Company's receivable balance from Conseco Agency
is secured by a pledge of the Agency's expirations and
renewals on the Company's in-force policies written through
Conseco Agency. On February 3, 2003, the bankruptcy judge
in the Conseco Agency Chapter 11 proceedings approved a
motion filed by Conseco Agency seeking authority to continue
doing business with the Company, and with Conseco’s other
insurance partners, on a business as usual basis.

16. SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

The Company has 40,000,000 shares of common stock
authorized for issuance without par value (stated value of
$.042 a share). The Company also has 1,000,000 shares of
preferred stock authorized, without par value, none of which
have been issued.

In January 2001, the Company's Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of the
Company's common stock and 404,000 of these shares had
been repurchased as of December 31, 2002. In October 1999,
1,000,000 common shares were authorized for repurchase by
the Board of Directors, all of which were repurchased by the
end of 2000.

The change in accumulated other comprehensive income was
comprised of changes related to the unrealized gains and losses
on investments, fair value of interest rate swap and additional
minimum pension liability as follows (amounts in 000's):

2002 2001 2000

Unrealized holding
gains (losses) on securities

arising during the period  $(1,404) $(11,358) $12,315
Reclassification adjustment:

mpact of net

realized loss (gain) 6,900 (2,023) (4,646)

income taxes on above (2,117) 4,860 (2,661)
Change in unrealized gains

(losses) on securities, net 3,37¢ (8,521) 5,008
Fair value of interest rate swap (1,945) — —
Income taxes on above 681 — _
Change of interest

rate swap, net (1,264) — —
Additional Pension Liability (642) — —
Income Taxes 225 — —
Change in additional

pension liability, net (417) —_ —
Net increase (decrease)

in accumulated other

comprehensive income $1.698 § (8521) §$ 5,008

The insurance subsidiaries are subject to state regulations
which limit by reference to statutory net income and
policyholders' surplus the dividends that can be paid to their
parent company without prior regulatory approval. Dividend
restrictions vary between the companies as determined by the
laws of the domiciliary states. Under these restrictions, the
maximum dividends that may be paid by the insurance
subsidiaries in 2003 without regulatory approval total
approximately $22,866,000; such subsidiaries paid cash
dividends of $8,900,000 in 2002, $15,000,000 in 2001 and
$5,350,000 in 2000.

Net income as determined in accordance with statutory
accounting practices, which differ in certain respects from
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, for the Company's insurance subsidiaries was
$20,809,000, $18,231,000 and $30,854,000 for 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. Statutory surplus was $242,207,000 and
$235,417,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

17. INDUSTRY SEGMENTS

The Company operates in several industries and Company
management reviews operating results by several different
classifications (e.g., product line, legal entity, distribution channel).
Reportable segments are determined based upon revenues
and/or operating profits and include manufactured housing
insurance, all other insurance and transportation. Manufactured
housing insurance includes primarily insurance similar to
homeowners insurance for manufactured houses. All other
insurance includes various personal lines such as site-built
dwelling, collateral protection, motorcycle and watercraft
insurance, as well as physical damage commercial lines such as
manufactured housing park and dealer insurance. The
Company writes insurance throughout the United States with
larger concentrations in the southern and southeastern states.
Transportation includes barge chartering and freight brokerage
operations primarily on the lower Mississippi River and its
tributaries.
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NoTEs TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below is financial information required to be reported for each industry segment. Certain amounts are allocated and
certain amounts are not allocated (e.g., assets and investment gains) to each segment for management review. Operating segment
information based upon how it is reviewed by the Company is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(amounts in 000's):

Manufactured Unallocated Corporate
Housing Other Insurance and All Intersegment
Insurance Insurance Amounts Transportation Other Elimination Total

2002
Revenues—External customers $325,335  $259,007 $2328 § 374 $ 608,001
Net investment income 19,457 15,803 $ 485 25 134 $ (315) 35,589
Net realized investment gains (losses) n/a n/a (6,900) (6,900)
Interest expense n/a n/a 2,124 215 2,479 (S69) 3,849
Depreciation and amortization 3,093 2,462 1,627 1,125 8,307
Income before taxes 21,048 13,612 (7,541) 464 (1,842) 25,741
Income tax expense n/a n/a 5,939 168 (670) 5,437
Change in accounting principle (1,463) (1,463)
Acquisition of fixed assets n/a n/a 10,598 69 10,667
Identifiable assets n/a n/a 1,021,572 22,469 63,425 (16,792) 1,090,674
2001
Revenues—External customers $318,298 $197,110 $34826 § 291 $ 550,525
Net investment income 20,562 14,042 $ 7 5 193 $ (814) 33,995
Net realized investment gains n/a n/a 2,023 2,023
Interest expense n/a n/a 2,081 260 3,580 (1,553) 4,368
Depreciation and amortization 2,274 1,409 590 2,304 1,747 8,324
Income before taxes 29,758 8,010 210 1,673 (3.647) 36,704
Income tax expense n/a n/a 10,205 594 (1,317} 9,482
Acquisition of fixed assets n/a n/a 9,515 12 208 9,735
Identifiable assets n/a n/a 987,149 24,952 56,670 (14,829) 1,053,942
2000
Revenues—External customers $309,943 $154,961 $33,119 $ 748 $498,771
Net investment income 20,787 11,272 $ 25 231§ (1,310) 31,0C5
Net realized investment gains n/a n/a 4,646 4,646
Interest expense n/a n/a 1,841 440 3,897 (2,046) 4132
Depreciation and amortization 2,251 1,125 590 2,690 2,495 9,151
income before taxes 37,589 10,718 2,602 2,793 (3,033) 50,6€9
Income tax expense n/a n/a 14,794 984 (572) 15,206
Acquisition of fixed assets

and businesses n/a n/a 5,987 58 259 6,304
Identifiable assets n/a n/a 912,008 27,412 72,009 (17,579) 993,850

The amounts shown for manufactured housing insurance, other insurance and unallocated insurance comprise the consolidated
amounts for Midland’s insurance operations subsidiary, American Modern Insurance Group, Inc. Intersegment revenues were not
significant for 2002, 2001 or 2000.

In September 2001, American Modern announced that it was exiting the commercial liability line of coverages that have been
provided to manufactured home parks and dealerships. The commercial liability coverages are included as part of the Other Insurance
Segment. The net earned premium related to the commercial liability was $11,290,000, $17,587,000 and $16,352,000 for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, revenues from one customer, Conseco, Inc., which exceeded 10% of consolidated revenues,
amounted to $78,643,000, $80,674,000 and $77,395,000, on a net earned premium basis, respectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

i

Deloitte
&Touche

Cincinnati, Ohio

To the Shareholders of The Midland Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of The Midland Company and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Midland Company and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2002
and 2001 and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 6, the Company adopted Statement
of Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” effective January 1, 2002.

- 7
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February 6, 2003

- MIANAGEMENT’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Midland Company:

The consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes of The Midland Company and its subsidiaries are the
responsibility of the Company's management, and have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. They necessarily
include amounts that are based on management's best
estimates and judgments. Other financial information
contained in this annual report is presented on a basis
consistent with the financial statements.

in order to maintain the integrity, objectivity and fairmess of
data in these financial statements, the Company has developed
and maintains comprehensive internai control which is
supplemented by a program of internal audits. Management
believes that the Company’s internal control is adequate to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded and the objectives of accuracy and fair presentation
of financial data are met in all material respects.

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP, Certified Public Accountants, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, including sufficient tests of the accounting records to
enable them to express an informed opinion as to whether the
financial statements, considered in their entirety, present fairly
the Company's financial position and results of operations in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Deloitte & Touche LLP reviews the results of its audit both with
management and with the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee, comprised entirely of outside
Directors, meets periodically with management, internal
auditors and independent auditors (separately and jointly) to
assure that each is fulfilling its responsibilities.

- 4\ N D \/m{(/ﬁ"ﬂ\i\_
John/W. Hayden hn I. VonLehman

Predident and Executive Vice President,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary J
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QUARTERLY [DATA

(UNAUDITED)
THE MIDLAND COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
2002 2001

(Amounts in thousands, First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
except per share data) Quarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter ~ Quarter  Quarter  Quarter
Revenues $152,532 $155,761 $158,552 $169,838 $139,982 $143,863 $147,097 $155,601
Net income (loss) $ 7857 §$ 5902 §$ (2,615) $ 7,697 $ 9692 $§ 6067 $ 1808 $ 9,655
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 45 8 35§ (.15) § 44 $ 56 3 35 % A1 8 .56

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 45§ 33 § (15 8 43 $ 54 % 34 3 10§ 53

Dividends per common share $ .04375 § .04375 $ .04375 §$ .04375 $ 04 3 04 3 .04 % .04

Price range of common stock (Nasdag):
High $ 2205 $ 2538 $§ 2517 $ 20.00 $ 1681 $ 2225 $ 2259 $ 24.14

Low $ 1955 $ 2063 $ 1565 $ 15.40 13.06 $ 1500 § 1250 $§ 17.70

L3

Previously reported share information has been adjusted to reflect a 2 for 1 stock split effective July 17, 2002.

OTHER INFORMATION
TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Fifth Third Bank Deloitte & Touche LLP
38 Fountain Square, Mail Drop #10AT66-3212 250 East Fifth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

1-800-837-2755
http://investordirect.53.com

SHAREHCLDERS' MEETING
The next meeting of the shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, April 10, 2003 at the Company's offices,
7000 Midland Boulevard, Amelia, Ohio 45102.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK
The Midland Company Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market System. The symbol is MLAN.,

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN
The Plan provides for the acquisition of additional shares of the Company without brokerage fees through automatic dividend
reinvestment. Enrollment forms and information about the Plan are available from Fifth Third Bank (1-800-837-2755).

FORM 10-K
A copy of the Company's 2002 Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K may be obtained free of
charge by writing to the Company - Attenticn: Chief Financial Officer or from the Company's website www.midlandcompany.com.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
For financial information visit us on the internet at www.nasdag.com
or www.midlandcompany.com
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